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To,
The Members of 
Glodyne Technoserve Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fifteenth Annual Report 
of your Company on the business and operations of the Company, 
together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended  
March 31, 2012.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

(` Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone

March
31, 2012

March
31, 2011

Total Income 161247.06 98881.83 

Profit / (Loss) Before Taxes  37769.79  20025.01

Less: Provision for Income Tax (net off 
short/(excess) provision for earlier years)

 12979.80  5100.00

Less: Provision for deferred tax/wealth 
Tax/fringe benefit tax 

 914.86  508.85

Profit / (Loss) After Taxes  25704.84  14416.16

Profit available for Appropriation  25704.84  14416.16

Less: Transfer to General Reserve  -  1441.62

Less: Proposed Dividend @  0.15 per 
share 

 67.62  1845.80

Less: Provision for Tax on Dividend  10.97  299.44

Add: Balance Brought forward from last 
year

28683.04 17853.74

Balance carried to Balance Sheet  54309.27 28683.04 

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

On a Standalone basis, your Company has recorded a total income 
of 1,61,247.06 Lakhs for the financial year ended March 31, 2012, 
an increase of 63.07% compared to last year’s figure of ` 98,881.83 
Lakhs. The Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Adjustments 
(EBITDA) stood at ` 46,130.47 Lakhs as compared to last years  
` 24,427.80 Lakhs, recording a growth of 88.84%. The Company’s profit 
after tax stood at ` 25,704.84 Lakhs as compared to previous year’s  
` 14,416.16 Lakhs, recording a growth of 78.31%. Due to subdued 
performance of the US subsidiary in view of the non availability of the 
working capital at US and hence delayed integration, the Consolidated 
results were lower as compared to the standalone for the year. The 
detailed analysis of the Company’s financial results for the year end is 
given in the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report which 
is separately annexed as part of the Annual Report.

DIVIDEND:

The Company as per its profit sharing policy, has been extending the 
profit participation to its shareholders through distribution of dividend. 
Your Company has been a consistent dividend paying company. Although 
the performance of your Company during the year under review, 
had been satisfactory, considering the need to plough back profit for 
sustaining growth of the Company and to maintain liquidity for timely 
meeting of business needs, your Directors revised its recommendation 

for dividend to ` 0.15/- per share as against earlier recommended at 
` 4.60/- per share for the year. This was also in accordance with the 
approvals from the Lenders. The Board at its meeting held on December 
6, 2012 accordingly also approved the changes in the final accounts 
approved in the earlier meeting and adopted the revised financial 
statements, giving effect to the new dividend recommendation. 

The total dividend payout is ̀  67.62 lakhs in comparison to the previous 
year dividend of ` 1845.80 lakhs (Previous year a dividend of ` 4.20/- 
on equity share of ` 6/- each), excluding the Corporate dividend tax. 

FINANCE AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

A) Strategic Acquisitions / Mergers:

 Domestic Acquisition:

 Your Company continued on its growth path through a healthy 
mix of organic and inorganic route. As a part of the Company’s 
strategy of growing and strengthening its leadership position in 
services business, your Company had announced the acquisition 
of Comat Technologies Pvt. Limited (‘Comat’), a leading provider 
of e-governance services in India, which is pending for closure 
due to completion of the customary closing conditions. As the 
acquisition is pending for closure the Consolidated Results do not 
include the financials of Comat. Comat subsequent to the closure 
of the acquisition, may act a subsidiary of your Company or may 
be merged with your Company in order to derive the necessary 
business and fiscal benefits, subject to necessary approvals. 

 Comat has been in the business of delivering essential Government 
and Private services to rural India. Comat has been a pioneer in 
e-governance services and ran a network of thousands of centers 
in rural areas for door step delivery of Government services. In 
addition to delivery of services, Comat has worked with Government 
in re-engineering processes and using technology to bring 
efficiency and cost savings to the Government. Most recently, 
Comat has been involved with piloting and subsequently scaling 
the UID initiative in several states. 

 The Comat acquisition together with our technology and service 
offerings, will help in creating value for all constituents, it will also 
facilitate the Company to expand its reach in new states and add 
several key partnerships and relationships with governments for 
providing citizen centric programs. 

B) Warrants issued under the preferential guidelines:

 As per the approval granted by the members of the Company at the 
14th Annual General Meeting, the Company during the year under 
review, on receipt of the requisite Stock Exchanges Approvals had 
issued 15,00,000 warrants, carrying the entitlement of conversion 
of 1(one) equity share of ` 6/- each (Rupees Six only) at ` 400/- 
per warrant to Glodyne Global Private Limited, a promoter group 
Company. The warrants are due for conversion in April, 2013. 

C) Increase in Share Capital:

 (i) Allotment on exercise of stock options under Employee Stock 
Option Scheme:

  During the year, 167,930 equity shares of the face value of  
` 6/- each (post subdivision) has been issued on the exercise 
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of Stock Options under the Employee Stock Option Scheme 
2006 of the Company. As a result of the above, the Company’s 
paid up capital stood increased to ` 26,39,59,260 consisting 
of 4,39,93,210 equity shares of ` 6/- each.

 (ii) Allotment on Conversion of warrants issued under the 
preferential guidelines:

  On June 23, 2010, 6,00,000 warrants were issued to 
Glodyne Global Pvt. Limited, a promoter group Company, 
as per members’ approval granted at 13th Annual General 
Meeting. The said warrants carried entitlement of conversion 
in to 1(one) equity share of ` 10/- each (Rupees Ten only). 
Post split, the allotted warrants were effected into 10,00,000 
warrants, carrying the entitlement of conversion of 1(one) 
equity share of ` 6/- each (Rupees Six only). The Promoter 
Warrant holder has exercised its right and converted the 
warrants into equity shares at a price of ` 432 per share. 
Accordingly, during the year under review, 10,00,000 equity 
shares were allotted to Glodyne Global, thereby increasing the 
paid up equity share capital from 4,39,93,210 to 4,49,93,210 
shares of ̀  6/- each (Rupees Six only) as on March 31, 2012.

DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and in accordance 
with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Alok Sharma will be 
retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Due to his 
other business plans and pre occupations, Mr. Sharma has not sought 
his re-appointment. 

During the year, Mr. Bryan Sanderson, Dr. Mohan Kaul and Mr. Samar Ray 
who were appointed as Additional Directors on the Board, were appointed 
as Directors liable to retire by rotation, as per the shareholders approval 
granted at the Annual General Meeting dated 15th September 2011.

Subsequent to the year end, Mr. Shantanu Rooj, Whole time director of 
the Company has ceased to be director of the Company. 

Shareholders attention is drawn to the relevant items appearing in the 
Notice of the A.G.M. and the explanatory statement, seeking the approval 
of the members in this matter.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

In accordance with the Glodyne Employees Stock Option Scheme, 
2010 of the Company, a total number of 680220 Stock Options (post 
subdivision no.) were granted during the year by the Compensation 
Committee. No fresh grants were made under the Employee Stock 
Option Scheme, 2006 of the Company. The particulars required under 
the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 are annexed to and form part of 
this report. No employee was issued Stock Option during the year equal 
to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital of the Company at the time of 
grant. The Scheme is applicable to the eligible employees which include 
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has complied with the Corporate Governance norms as 
stipulated under the provisions of the Listing Agreement entered into 
with the Stock Exchanges. A separate section on Corporate Governance 
Report and a Certificate from the Company’s Statutory Auditors 
confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance by 
the Company as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement are 
annexed to and forming part of this report.

STATUTORY INFORMATIONS:

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, EFFORTS FOR EXPORT MARKET 
DEVELOPMENT, R & D ACTIVITIES, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS & OUTGO AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

As required under Section 217(1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 and 
the rules made thereunder, the necessary details are given hereunder:

Conservation of Energy

As your Company’s business comprises of Technology IMS, which is 
service driven, the operations are not energy intensive. Hence there 
are no particulars required to be furnished in respect of conservation 
of energy. However, as a responsible corporate citizen, the Company 
carries out various energy conservation measures, including use of 
equipments for minimizing power consumption.

Export Market Development

The Company has export market in terms of its services and the 
primary market overseas has been the US. The Company has been 
making further efforts to offshore the activities carried out in the US by 
its subsidiaries, which includes internal outsourcing and client servicing. 
The Company focuses on offshore servicing of US clients, thereby 
increasing export share.

Research & Development Activities

There is a constant endeavour at your Company to upgrade its products 
/ services offerings. For such purposes, the Company invests and carries 
out the research and development activities. To enhance the capabilities 
of service delivery, Company has in house developed mobile application 
for its on field support services. It has resulted in efficiency improvements 
and cost savings. The Company also carried out virtualization of the 
Data Centers at US, which resulted in better performance of the data 
centers and efficiency.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo / Technology Absorption

During the year under review, the Company has earned ̀  2,377.76 Lakhs 
in foreign currency (Previous year `  15,223.08 Lakhs) and has spent 
` 193.58 Lakhs (Previous year ` 37.28 Lakhs). Details of the same are 
available vide note nos. B - 28 and 29 of the Notes forming part of the 
Audited Accounts, attached herewith.

The Company has not imported any foreign technology and hence the 
requisite particulars in this regard are Nil.

Explanation in respect of Auditors comments in the Audit Report.

The Board gives the following explanations on the comments of Auditors 
reported in the Annexure to Auditors Report:

 1)     Refer point (ix) (a) of the Annexure to the Auditors’ Report 
to the members - There are certain delays in the payment 
of certain statutory dues. However, the Company has been 
generally regular in depositing the same and the post the year 
end the process of payment of the same was already initiated. 
The management opines that in future, your Company will be 
able to meet its obligation in time.

 2) Refer point 4 of the Auditors’ Report to the members on 
Consolidated Financial Statements - Even though there 
is no mandatory requirement of conducting audit of the said 
subsidiary as per the US laws, the US GAAP and Indian 
GAAP Audit of the Decision One Corporation have been 
carried out by the US Auditors. However, the pending certain 
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previous year confirmations, the report in respect of the year 
under review was pending for release by them on the date of 
adoption of the accounts. 

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS UNDER SECTION 217(2A):

The disclosure about the details of the employees drawing remuneration 
in excess of the limits specified under Section 217(2A) of the Companies 
Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 
1975, during the year under review forms part of the Directors’ Report. 
However, having regard to the provisions of Section 219 (i) (b) (iv) of 
the Companies Act, 1956, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid 
information is being sent to all the shareholders of the Company and 
others entitled thereto. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of 
the same may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office 
of the Company. The statement is also available for inspection at the 
registered office during working hours upto the date of the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting (AGM).

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 
1956, the Directors hereby confirm:

(i)  that in the preparation of the accounts for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2012, the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures; 

(ii)  that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 
under review and of the profit for the year under review;

(iii)  that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

(iv)  that the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2012 on a going concern basis.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

As on March 31, 2012, your Company’s subsidiaries included Glodyne 
Peoplepower Limited, Smaarftech Technologies Private Limited, 
Glodyne Technoserve Inc., DecisionOne Corporation USA and its 2 US 
subsidiaries, Glodyne Technoserve East Inc., Front Office Technologies, 
Inc., Compulink USA Inc., Compulink Software Pte. Ltd., Compulink 
Europe Ltd.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has granted general exemption under 
Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956 exempting companies from 
attaching copies of the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Reports 
of the Board of Directors and Auditors of Subsidiaries as specified under 
Section 212(1) of the Companies Act, 1956 subject to publication of 
certain summarised financial information of the subsidiaries in the Annual 
Report. Also, as required, the Company has attached to this report, 
Consolidated Audited Accounts of the Company and all its subsidiaries. 
Accordingly these documents related to subsidiaries are not attached to 
the Balance Sheet and the summarised financial information related to 
subsidiaries is included in the Annual Report. The annual accounts of the 
subsidiaries along with the related information will be made available to 
the Members seeking such information at any point of time. The annual 

accounts of the subsidiaries are also available for inspection during 
business hours at the Registered Office of the Company for inspection 
by any interested shareholder.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits falling within the purview 
of Section 58A of the Company’s Act, 1956 during the year under review, 
and as such, no principal or interest amount was outstanding on the 
date of the Balance sheet.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

Green Initiative

As permitted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) in its circular 
“Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” issued towards encouraging 
paperless compliances, the Company intends to disseminate the Annual 
Report and related communications for FY- 2011-2012 in electronic mode. 

Going forward also the Company’s communications / documents 
(including Notice of General Meetings, Audited Financial Statements, 
Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and all other documents including 
Postal Ballot documents) as may be allowed from time to time, by MCA 
will be send in electronic mode to the registered e-mail addresses of 
the Members as provided / updated by you and made available to the 
Company by the Depositories, which will be deemed to be your registered 
e-mail address for serving the necessary communications / documents. 

Your directors also requests you to register your e-mail address with 
your DP for the purpose of serving of documents by the Company 
in electronic mode, if your e-mail address is not registered with your 
Depository Participant (DP).

Glodyne Care Foundation

The Company through its social trust titled “Glodyne Care Foundation” 
supports it’s social initiatives. The foundation is setup with the object 
of imparting education, helping the down trodden, etc. The Foundation 
embodies corporate systems and processes driven organization 
operating on a not for profit basis, with the overall aim to create and 
support meaningful and innovative activities that will address some of 
India’s most pressing development challenges. 

AUDITORS:

The Present Statutory Auditors of the Company M/s. N M Kapadia and 
Co, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, hold their office until the conclusion 
of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The present auditors have 
confirmed their willingness and eligibility under Section 224(1B) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 for their reappointment for the financial year ending 
2012-13 at a remuneration to be decided by the Board of Directors or 
Committee thereof.

Your Directors recommend their re-appointment at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting for your approval.

HUMAN CAPITAL:

The Company’s present human capital comprises organic resources 
and additions made through the overseas acquisitions. The Company 
has a strong outsourced model for various projects which creates 
local employment. The Company carries out various initiatives for the 
talent management within the organization and to this intent, various 
employee centric programs such –Excellence workshops, etc have been 
designed and are carried out to promote healthy competition, motivate 
the workforce, and aligning them to the organization’s objectives. Your 
Company is an equal opportunities  Employer.
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QUALITY INITIATIVES:

The Company has been certified with by International Organization for 
Standardization (ISO) with ISO 27001, the highest certification standard 
on information security. The Company is also an ISO 9001:2000 certified 
and CMMi level 3 compliant Company. The Process methodologies are 
followed to ensure quality deliverables to clients.

AWARDS & ACCOLADES:

During the year under review, your Company was awarded with the 
following Awards:

‘Best Under a Billion’ 2011 award for the year by Forbes 
Asia 

‘Outstanding Entrepreneurship Award’ awarded 
to Mr. Annand Sarnaaik at the The Asia Pacific 
Entrepreneurship Awards 2011 

‘E-Shakti’ project of Glodyne was adjudged as the winner at 
‘EDGE’ awards at INTEROP 2011. 

E-Shakti’ was declared as the best ‘ICT initiative in the 
Country’ at the PC Quest 2011 Awards 

“Best Government to 
Citizen Initiative” Company at the ‘E-World Awards 2011’ 

Education Managed Services was announced 
as the winner at “World Education Award 2011” 

Glodyne received ‘Asia’s Best Employer Brand Award 
2011’ under the categories of Best Employer Brand – Talent 
Management and in the Continuous Innovation at HR 
Strategy 

top performing mid sized companies 
by Inc India 

‘Deloitte Technology Fast 500 AsiaPac 
Program’ 2011 and ‘Deloitte Technology Fast 50 India 
Program’ 2011 
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vendors, bankers, media, analysts for their continued support and co-
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Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the business 
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     Chairman & Managing Director
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Information to be disclosed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (during the F.Y. ended 
March 31, 2012):

A. Summary of Status of ESOPs Granted

 The position of the existing schemes is summarized as under -

Sr. 
No.

Particulars ESOP 2006 ESOP 2010

1 Details of the Meeting Authorized by 
Shareholders 

of the Company 
on 29th 

September 
2006

Authorized by 
Shareholders 

of the Company 
on 24th 

December 2010

2 The Pricing Formula “Market price” 
as defined by 

SEBI

“Market price” 
as defined by 

SEBI

3 Options Granted* 2,959,773 18,61,200

4 Opt ions Vested and 
Exercisable*

382,807 45,108

5 Options Exercised* 15,70,450 0

6 Options Cancelled* 587,276 382,601

7 Options Lapsed* 0 1353

8 Total Number of Options 
in force *

802,047 14,77,246

9 Variation in terms of 
ESOP

Not Applicable Not Applicable

10 Total number of shares 
arising as a result of 
exercise of options

15,70,450 0

11 M o n ey  r e a l i ze d  by 
exercise of options during 
the year (` In Lakhs)

 730.54 0

*The options have been adjusted for split – Face value of ` 10 split to 
face value of ` 6 as on February 10,2011 and a bonus of 1:1 share as 
on August 20,2009 

B. Employee-wise details of options granted during the financial 
year 2011-12 to:

(i) Senior managerial personnel no. 10

(ii) Employees who were granted, during any one 
year, options amounting to 5% or more of the 
options granted during the year

4

(iii) Identified employees who were granted 
option, during any one year equal to or 
exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants and conversions) of the 
company at the time of grant.

Nil

C. Weighted average Fair Value of Options granted during the 
year whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price 134.06

(b) Exercise price is greater than market price NA

(c) Exercise price is less than market price 230.50

Weighted average Exercise price of options granted during the 
year whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price 280.10

(b) Exercise price is greater than market price NA

(c) Exercise price is less than market price 6.00
 

D. 

Whe re  t he  company  has 
c a l c u l a t e d  t h e  e m p l oye e 
compensation cost using the 
intr insic value of the stock 
options, the difference between 
the employee compensation cost 
so computed and the employee 
compensation cost that shall 
have been recognized if it had 
used the fair value of the options, 
shall be disclosed. The impact of 
this difference on profits and on 
EPS of the company shall also 
be disclosed.

The stock-based compensation 
cost calculated as per the intrinsic 
value method for the financial 
year 2011-12 is ` 21.19 Lakhs. 
If the stock-based compensation 
cost was calculated as per the 
fair value method, the total cost 
to be recognised in the financial 
statements for the year 2011-12 
would be ` 841.41 Lakhs. The 
profits would have been lower 
by ` 841.41 lakhs and basic and 
diluted earnings per share would 
have been lower by ` 1.86 &  
` 1.76 respectively. 

E. Method and Assumptions used to estimate the fair value of 
options granted during the year:

 The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Option 
Pricing model.  

 The Assumptions used in the model are as follows:

Variables 30-Aug-11 6-Mar-12

1. Risk Free Interest Rate 8.30% 8.29%

2. Expected Life (years) 3.50 3.50

3. Expected Volatility 61.14% 58.03%

4. Dividend Yield 1.03% 1.03%

5. Price of the underlying 
share in market at the 
time of the option grant.
(`)

280.10 243.60

Annexure to the Directors’ Report
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1. The Company’s Philosophy

 The Company has set itself the objective of expanding its capacities 
and becoming globally competitive in its business. As a part of 
its growth strategy, the Company believes in adopting the ‘best 
practices’ that are followed in the area of Corporate Governance 
across various geographies. Glodyne continuously strives for best 
corporate governance practices and ensures better transparency, 
accountability and fairness in dissemination of information to its 
stakeholders. 

 Glodyne considers itself committed to ensure that the operations of 
the Company result in enhancing the shareholders’ value as also 
carrying on the business with maximum possible transparency. 
Formal Corporate Governance practices at Glodyne includes 
Constitution of various committees for monitoring specific areas, 
presence of independent directors on the Board etc.,. Glodyne 
has not only adopted practices mandated in Clause 49, but also 
implemented certain non-mandatory recommendations.

2. Board of Directors

 A) Composition of Board of Directors:

  The Chairman & Managing Director along with the other 
Executive Director/Whole Time Director manages the 
day – to – day affairs of the Company. The Company has 
an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors for its independent functioning with more than fifty 
percent of the Board of Directors comprising of non-executive 
directors. All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the 
Non-Executive Directors vis-à-vis the Company is disclosed 
in the Annual Report. As on 31st March, 2012, the Board 
comprises of 8 Directors, consisting of 3 Executive Directors 
and 5 Non-Executive Directors. All Non-Executive Directors 
are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Company 
is Executive Chairman and the composition of the Board of 
Directors is consistent with the provisions of the Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreements entered with the Stock Exchanges. 

  No Director is related to any other Director on the Board in 
terms of the definition of ‘relative’ given under the Companies 
Act, 1956, except Mr. Annand Sarnaaik and Mrs. Divvyani 
A. Sarnaaik who are respectively related to each other as 
spouse.

  None of the Directors on the Board are Members of more than 
ten Committees or Chairman of more than five Committees 
across all the companies in which they are Directors. The 
requisite disclosures regarding Committee positions in other 
public companies as on March 31, 2012 have been made by 
the Directors to the Board. For the purpose of reckoning this 
limit Membership / Chairmanship of Audit Committee and 
Investor’s Grievance Committee as defined under the Listing 
Agreement only are considered.

  During the year, the applicable and incident based information, 
if any, as mentioned in Annexure 1A to Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreements was placed before the Board for its consideration.

  The departments of the Company schedule their work plans 
in advance, particularly with regard to matters requiring 
consideration at the Board/Committee Meetings. All such 
matters are communicated to the Company Secretary in 
advance so that the same could be included in the Agenda 
for the Board/Committee Meetings and accordingly important 
decisions taken at the Board/Committee Meetings are 
promptly communicated to the concerned departments. Action 
Taken Report on decisions/minutes of previous meetings is 
placed at the subsequent meetings of the Board/Committee 
for noting and updation.

  Composition of the Board, and directorships held as at March 
31, 2012 along with the attendance of Directors during fiscal 
2012 are as below:

Name 
of the 
Directors

Category Attendance 
at

As on March 
31, 2012

BM LAST 
AGM

Directorships 
in other 

companies#

Mr. Annand 
Sarnaaik

Promoter & 
Executive  
Director

4 YES 6

Mrs. 
Divvyani A. 
Sarnaaik

Promoter & 
Executive 
Director

4 YES 6

Mr. 
Shantanu 
Rooj

Non 
Independent  
& Whole- time 
Director

3 YES 1

Mr. Samar 
Ray*

Independent  & 
Non – Executive 
Director

2 YES Nil

Mr. 
Dhiren B. 
Kothary**

Independent  &  
Non-Executive 
Director

2 NO N.A

Dr. Mohan 
Kaul*

Independent  &  
Non-Executive 
Director

2 YES Nil

Mr. Bryan 
Sanderson*

Independent  & 
Non-Executive 
Director

1 NO Nil

Mr. Alok 
Sharma

Independent  & 
Non-Executive 
Director

4 YES Nil

Mr. R.S.P. 
Sinha

Independent  & 
Non-Executive 
Director

4 YES Nil

  # The Directorships held by Directors as mentioned above, 
do not include Alternate Directorships and Directorships 
in Foreign Companies, Companies Registered under 
Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 and Private 
Limited Companies. Includes directorships in Public 
Limited Companies only, excluding directorship in 
Glodyne Technoserve Limited.

  * Appointed as Additional Director w.e.f August 05, 
2011, was regularized and Appointed as Director w.e.f 
September 15, 2011. 

  ** Vacated the Office w.e.f September 15, 2011.

   No Director of the Company is a member in more than 
ten committees or act as Chairman of more than five 
committees across all companies in which they are 
Director(s). The confirmation in the said regard has 
been obtained from the Directors. For the purpose of 
reckoning the limits, Chairmanships/Memberships of 
Board Committees include only Audit and Shareholders/
Investors Grievance Committees.

Corporate Governance Report
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 B)  Non-Executive Directors’ Compensation and Disclosures:

  The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fee at the rate of 
` 20,000/-, ̀  15,000/- & ̀  15,000/- for attending each meeting 
of the Board, Audit Committee & Investor’s Grievance 
Committee respectively. Apart from the said referred meetings 
no sitting fees was paid to the Directors for any other 
Committee meetings held during the year.

  All sitting fees paid to the Non -Executive Directors are fixed 
by the Board of Directors. The Shareholders of the Company 
at their Ninth Annual General Meeting had approved the 
payment of commission to the Non - Executive Director’s 
up to 1% of the profit of the Company. However, no such 
commission has been paid to the Non-Executive Directors 
for the year under consideration. During the financial year 
ended March 31, 2012, 50,000 stock options of face value of 
` 6/- per share were granted to the Non - Executive Directors 
under the Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2010. Details of 
the fees paid to the Non Executive Directors are disclosed 
else where in this report.

 C)  Other provisions related to Board and Committees:

  During the financial year 2011 – 2012, Four (4) Board 
Meetings were held. The Company has held at least one 
Board meeting in every three months and the maximum time 
gap between any such two meetings was not more than four 
months. Request for Leave of Absence, if any, requested by 
the Directors was granted accordingly. All the information 
required to be placed before the Board as per Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreement was made available to the Board. The 
necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The dates 
on which the said meetings were held were as follows:

  May 12, 2011; August 05, 2011; November 11, 2011 & 
February 10, 2012

3.  BOARD COMMITTEES 

 The Board of Directors of the Company has formed following 
committees for the effective exercise of powers and responsibilities 
as envisaged in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

 A.  Audit Committee

  In accordance with the provisions of Section 292A of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, 
an independent and qualified Audit Committee of the Board 
consisting of three Independent and one Non-Independent 
Director, has been constituted. 

  Four (04) Audit Committee Meetings were held during 2011-12. 
The dates on which the said meetings were held were as follows:

  May 12, 2011; August 04, 2011; November 10, 2011 & 
February 09, 2012

  The Composition of and the details of the Audit Committee 
meetings held are given below:

Name Designation / 
Category

No. of Meetings 
attended during 
the year 2011-12

Mr. RSP Sinha Chairman 
(Independent)

4

Mr. Samar Ray Member  
(Independent)

2

Mr. Alok Sharma Member (Independent) 4

Mr. Annand Sarnaaik Member (Non 
Independent)

4

Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary* Member (Independent) 2

** Vacated the Office w.e.f September 15, 2011

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as follows:

 a)  To review compliance with internal control systems;

 b)  To review the findings of the Internal Auditor relating to various 
functions of the Company.

 c)  To hold periodic discussions with the Statutory Auditors and 
Internal Auditors of the Company concerning the accounts 
of the Company, internal control systems, scope of audit and 
observations of the Auditors/Internal Auditors.

 d)  To review the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results 
of the Company before submission to the Board.

 e)  To make recommendations to the Board on any matter relating 
to the financial management of the Company, including the 
Statutory & Internal Audit Reports.

 f)  Recommending the appointment of statutory auditors and 
also fixation of their remuneration.

 g)  Reviewing with the management, the annual financial 
statements before submission to the board for approval, with 
the particular reference to:

  (i)  matter required to be included in the Directors 
Responsibility Statement forming part of the Board’s 
report in terms of clause (2AA) of Section 217 of 
Companies Act, 1956.

  (ii) Changes if any, in accounting policies and practices and 
reasons for the same.

  (iii) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on 
the exercise of judgement by management.

  (iv) Significant adjustments made in financial statement 
arising out of audit findings.

  (v) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements 
relating to financial statement.

  (vi) Disclosure of any related party transactions.

     (vii)  Qualifications in draft Audit Report, if any.

 h)  To review financial statements including investments made 
by Unlisted Subsidiary Companies.

 i)  Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial 
statements before submission to the board for approval

 j)  Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory 
and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal control 
systems.

  The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

 B. Remuneration Committee

  The Company has a Remuneration Committee of Directors 
constituted in accordance with Schedule XIII of the Companies 
Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The 
Remuneration Committee deliberates and determine on 
matters like the remuneration and annual performance 
payable, terms and conditions of appointment and other 
matters relating to executive directors/ managerial persons; 
to deliberate and recommend on the structuring of the 
remuneration package and formulate remuneration policies 
and other matters as the Board may request the Committee 
to consider and recommend/approve from time to time.

  During the F.Y. 2011-12, 1 (One) Meeting of the Remuneration 
Committee was held on February 10, 2012.

  The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.
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  Remuneration Policy:

  The Company’s remuneration policy is directed towards 
rewarding performance and achievements. The remuneration 
consists of basic pay, perquisites, performance allowances, 
bonus, incentives and commission. The remuneration and 
structure varies as per the various grades depending upon the 
job responsibilities, qualifications, experience etc. The policy 
aims to drive the human resources to achieve higher levels 
of performance, reward the merits and work as a motivating 
force.

  The remuneration of the Executive Directors is approved by 
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors and the 
shareholders of the Company. 

  Details of remuneration paid to all the Directors for the F.Y. 
2011 -2012:          

(` in ‘Lakhs’)

Name Salary includes 
Perquisites,  

Commission & Bonus

Sitting 
Fees

Total

Mr. Annand Sarnaaik 54.50 - 54.50

Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik 43.54 - 43.22

Mr. Shantanu Rooj 34.77 - 34.77

Mr. RSP Sinha - 1.53 1.53

Mr. Samar Ray - 0.65 0.65

Mr. Bryan Sanderson - 0.32 0.32

Mr. Alok Sharma - 0.95 0.95

Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary - 0.90 0.90

Dr. Mohan Kaul - 0.28 0.28

Notes: 

a)  Salary includes Medical  Benefits,  Group  Hospitalisation  Benefits,  
Leave  Travel  Allowance,  Privileged  Leave , encashment of 
unutilized  privileged  Leave,  Gratuity, Commission, etc. No 
performance linked incentives were paid to the Directors. The 
terms of remuneration of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik & Mrs. Divvyani A. 
Sarnaaik were fixed for a period of two years from September 25, 
2010 to September 24, 2012. The shareholders vide their resolution 
dated December 24, 2010 approved the revised remuneration scale 
for both Mr. Annand Sarnaaik & Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik for the 
remaining term of their office, i.e. the revised salary was paid upto 
their remaining term of office ending September 24, 2012. 

 The revised remuneration details are given below:

 Mr. Annand Sarnaaik: Not exceeding ̀  87,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty 
Seven Lakhs Only), effective from September 25, 2010.

 Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik: Not exceeding ` 69,00,000/- (Rupees 
Sixty Nine Lakhs), effective from September 25, 2010. 

b)  Mr. Annand Sarnaaik & Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik were appointed as 
Chairman & Managing Director and Executive Director respectively 
for a term of five years from September 25, 2007 and hold office 
till September 24, 2012. The appointment is on contractual basis, 
which can be terminated with six months’ notice period.

c)  Mr. Shantanu Rooj was appointed as a Whole Time Director of 
the Company, for a period of three years from December 24, 
2010 to December 23, 2013. The appointment was on contractual  
basis.

d)  No commission has been paid to the Non-Executive Directors of 
the Company. Non-Executive Directors of the Company are paid 

sitting fees for attending Board/Committee Meetings as approved 
by the Board within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 
1956. The Non-Executive Directors are eligible for Stock Options, 
the details of the stock options granted to them is mentioned in 
below section of this Report.

e)  The Company did not have any material pecuniary relationships 
or transactions with the Non-Executive Directors, except to the 
disclosures, if any made in any other part of the Annual Report.

C.  Shareholders/ Investor’s Grievance Committee 

 The Investors’ Grievance Committee of the Company, specifically 
look into the redressal of Investors’ complaints like transfer of 
shares, non-receipt of balance sheet and non-receipt of declared 
dividend, etc., The Committee comprises of the following

 1. Mr. Bryan Sanderson - Chairman (Independent)

 2. Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik - Member (Non- Independent)

 3. Mr. Shantanu Rooj - Member (Non- Independent)

 Four (04) meetings of the Investors’ Grievance Committee were 
held during the F.Y. 2011-12. 

 May 12, 2011; August 5, 2011; November 11, 2011 & February 10, 
2012.

 The details of the meetings attended by the Directors are given 
below:

Names of the Members No. of Meetings 
held during the 

year 2011-12

No. of Meetings 
attended 

during the 
year 2011-12

Mr. Bryan Sanderson# 04 Nil

Mr. Shantanu Rooj 04 02

Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik 04 04

Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary* 04 0 2

*Vacated the Office w.e.f September 15, 2011

# Added as a member of the Investors’ Grievance Committee vide Board 
resolution dated November 11, 2011.

The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

Shareholder/Investor Complaints

Complaints pending as on April 01, 2011 NIL

During the period April 01, 2011 to March 31, 2012, 
complaints identified and reported under Clause 41 
of the Listing Agreements

37

Complaints disposed off /resolved during the year 
ended March 31, 2012 

37

No. of complaints not resolved to the satisfaction 
of shareholders Complaints pending as on March 
31, 2012

NIL

The above complaints include 4 (Four) SEBI compliant which is duly 
redressed by the Company.

The shareholding position of the Company in dematerialized form stood 
95.73 % as on March 31, 2012.

D. Managing Committee

 The Managing Committee of Board of Directors is empowered to 
take decision on the routine matters within its defined scope of 
authority including delegated borrowing powers upto limits laid by 
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the Board. The Committee enables the management to take quick 
decisions pertaining to the routine business occurring on day to 
basis and save the valuable time of the Board, it also helps in 
avoiding the administrative difficulties. The Managing committee 
had met frequently during the year under review to manage its day 
to day functions.

E. Compensation Committee

 The Compensation Committee of the Board of our Company, consist 
of Executive & Non - Executive Directors, comprising of the following 
members:

  The Committee primarily administers the Employee Stock 
Option Scheme of the Company. The brief description of terms 
of reference include:

 (i)  Formulating detailed terms and conditions of Employee Stock 
options Scheme (ESOS), including the quantum of options 
to be granted under the scheme, the conditions under which 
options vested in employees may lapse in case of termination 
of employment, the exercise period within which the employee 
shall exercise the option and the option would lapse on failure 
to exercise the option within the exercise period, the specified 
time period within which the employee shall exercise the 
vested option in the event of termination or resignation of an 
employee, etc managing and supervising the scheme, 

 (ii)  framing of suitable policies and systems to ensure compliances 
with applicable rules and regulations and to perform such 
other functions, that the Committee is required under SEBI’s 
guidelines, recommending the overall compensation structure 
of the Organization and review thereof as required by the 
Management. 

F.  Employee Stock Option Scheme Committee:

 The Company has a Committee named as Employee Stock Option 
Scheme Committee (ESOS Committee), which inter alia administers 
the exercise of stock options and matter relating to allotment of 
shares consequent to exercise of options and listing of shares. The 
Company has two stock options schemes, namely: (i) Employee 
Stock Option Scheme 2006 (ESOS 2006) (ii) Employee Stock 
Option Scheme 2010 (ESOS 2010).

 During the year, the Company has granted / allotted stock options 
as follows:

Grants details Allotment details

Date of stock 
options 
granted  
during the 
FY 2011 -12

No. of stock 
options 
granted (right 
to apply for 
one Equity 
Share of ` 
6/- each)

Date of 
allotment 
of  the FY 
2011 -12

No. of equity 
shares (face 
value 6/- 
each) allotted  
pursuant to 
exercise of 
stock options 

A u g u s t  3 0 , 
2011

430,220 May 13, 2011 18,070

March 06, 2012 250,000 A u g u s t  2 9 , 
2011

89,541

- - November 03, 
2011

60,319

The details of the options granted to the Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company during the year is given below:

Name of the Director No. of options 
granted

Scheme

Mr. Alok Sharma 10000 ESOS 2010

Mr. Bryan Sanderson 10000 ESOS 2010

Dr. Mohan Kaul 10000 ESOS 2010

Mr. RSP Sinha 10000 ESOS 2010

Mr. Samar Ray 10000 ESOS 2010

 Mr. Annand Sarnaaik, Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik & Mr. Shantanu 
Rooj, are the Members of the said Committee.

4.  SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES,

 The Company has 6 direct subsidiaries & 5 step down subsidiaries, 
out of which 9 of them are Foreign subsidaries and 2 are Indian 
subsidaries. As on March 31, 2012 the Company does not have 
any material non-listed Indian subsidiary Company and hence, it 
is not required to have an Independent Director of the Company 
on the Board of such subsidiary Company. 

5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

 A detailed report on the Management Discussion and Analysis 
prepared in accordance with Sub-clause F (i) of Clause 49 is 
enclosed and forms part of this Annual Report.

6. DISCLOSURES

 i. Related Party Transactions 

  Besides the transactions mentioned elsewhere in the Annual 
Report, there were no other materially significant related 
party transactions that may have potential conflict with the 
interests of the Company at large. However, the particulars of 
transactions between the Company and the related parties as 
per the Accounting Standard 18 are set out in Note 33 forming 
part of the accounts. 

  The Accounts have been drawn in accordance with relevant 
Accounting Standards. The Company periodically carries Risk 
Analysis & Management procedure review through systematic 
framework.

 ii. Compliances by the Company

  The Company has complied with the requirements of the 
Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities & no 
penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company 
by the Stock Exchange, SEBI or other statutory authorities 
relating to the capital markets during the last three years.  

 iii. Mandatory requirements of Clause 49

  The Company has complied with all the mandatory 
requirements as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

 iv. Non Mandatory requirements of Clause 49

  The Company has adopted the following non-mandatory 
requirement as prescribed in Annexure I D to the Clause 49 
of the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges:

  (a)  The Company has adopted Whistle-Blower Policy and 
affirms that no employee of the Company has been 
denied access to the Audit Committee.

  (b)  The Company has constituted a Remuneration 
Committee, details of which have been given earlier in 
this Report.
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 v. Code of Conduct

  The Board has laid down two separate Code of Conduct 
(Codes), one for Board Members and other for Senior 
Management of the Company. These Codes have been posted 
on the Company’s website http://www.glodynetechnoserve.in. 
All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have 
affirmed compliance with these codes. A declaration signed by 
the Chairman & Managing Director to this effect is enclosed 
at the end of this report.

 vi. Share Capital Audit

  A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out a 
Reconciliation of Share Capital to reconcile the total admitted 
capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and 
the total issued and listed capital. The Reconciliation confirms 
that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the 
total number of shares in physical form and the total number 
of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 The details of the last three Annual General Meetings held, were as under:

Financial Year Location Date Time Special resolutions passed

2010-11 E x c h a n g e  P l a z a ,  N S E 
Auditorium, Ground Floor, 
Bandra–Kurla Complex, Bandra 
(East), Mumbai - 400 051

15.09.2011 3.30 P.M 1.  Raising funds by way of preferential issue of 15 Lakh 
Warrants of the Company to M/s. Glodyne Global 
Private Limited.

2.  Raising funds not exceeding USD 150 million by 
way of placement shares and/or other permitted 
securities to Qualified Institutional Buyer through 
QIP placement.

2009-10 E x c h a n g e  P l a z a ,  N S E 
Auditorium, Ground Floor, 
Bandra–Kurla Complex, Bandra 
(East), Mumbai - 400 051

24.12.2010 11.00 A.M 1.  Appointment of Mr. Shantanu Rooj, as a Whole 
Time Director of the Company and his terms of 
remuneration.

2.  Terms of remuneration of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik, 
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company 
for his remaining period of two years of his existing 
term of appointment.

3.  Terms of remuneration of Mrs. Divvyani A. 
Sarnaaik, Executive Director of the Company for 
her remaining period of two years of her existing 
term of appointment.

4.  Raising funds not exceeding USD 150 million by 
way of placement shares and/or other permitted 
securities to Qualified Institutional Buyer through 
QIP placement.

5.  Raising funds not exceeding USD 150 million in 
domestic/international markets by way of Public/
Private issue/offering of FCCBs or GDRs.

6.  Sub-division of the share capital of the Company 
from ` 10/- each into ` 6/- each fully paid-up.

7.  Alteration of the Memorandum of Association of 
the Company for increase in the Authorized Share 
Capital of the Company

8.  Alteration of the Articles of Association of the 
Company for increase in the Authorized Share 
Capital.

9.  Glodyne Employees Stock Option Scheme 2010 
and issue and grant of Equity Stock Options to the 
eligible present and future employees and Directors 
of the Company under the Scheme.

10. To extend benefits of the Glodyne Employees 
Stock Option Scheme 2010 to all eligible present 
and future employees and Directors of existing and 
future Indian and /or Foreign subsidiary (ies) of the 
Company.

2008-09 E x c h a n g e  P l a z a ,  N S E 
Auditorium, Ground Floor, 
Bandra–Kurla Complex, Bandra 
(East), Mumbai - 400 051

24.08.2009 11.00 A.M NIL

 There was no special resolution passed last year through postal ballot nor it is proposed to conduct any business through postal ballot for the 
year ended March 31, 2012. 

 During the year 2011-12, No Extra –Ordinary General meeting of the Company was held. 
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8.  SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION.

 According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors 
retires by rotation and if eligible, seeks re-appointment at the 
Annual General Meeting of shareholders. As per Article 120 of the 
Articles of Association, Mr. Alok Sharma will retire at the ensuing 
15th Annual General Meeting of the Company. Mr. Alok Sharma 
however, due to other pre occupancies have expressed his inability 
to offer him self for re -appointment.

 The Board of Directors put on record their appreciation towards 
the contribution made by him to the Company.

 A) Directors’ shareholding as on March 31, 2012: 

Name of Director No. of 
Shares

% of total 
share capital

Executive Directors  
 Promoter Directors

1.  Annand Sarnaaik 15235210 33.86

2.  Divvyani A. Sarnaaik 9164543 20.37

 Non Promoter Directors

3.  Shantanu Rooj 286900 0.64

Non Executive Directors

4.  Alok Sharma 5000 0.01

  As on March 31, 2012, all the present Non Executive Directors 
hold 66,666 stock options (each vested option carrying the 
entitlement to exercise for one equity share of ` 6/- each) put 
together, of the Company.

 B)  Means of communication: The Company has promptly 
reported to the Stock Exchanges where the securities of 
the Company are listed, its quarterly / half yearly / annual 
financial results. The Company also simultaneously sends to 
the Stock Exchanges press releases, if any, issued by it. The 
Company’s periodical financial results as well as the press 
releases are displayed on the website of the Company – www.
glodynetechnoserve.in. The financial results are published in 
one English and one Marathi daily newspaper, normally in 
Business Standard and Sakal / Lokmat respectively.  

  Since the periodical financial results are published in leading 
newspapers and posted on the Company’s website, the results 
are not sent to the households of the shareholders. During the 
year, the Company has made presentations to Institutional 
Investors, analysts, etc and the same is available on the 
website of Company.

 C)  General shareholder information

Date and time of Annual 
General Meeting

Venue of Annual General 
Meeting

December 29, 2012.

MIG Club, Galaxy Hall, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai - 
400051.

Financial year April 01 to March 31

Financial Calendar for the 
year 2012 - 2013

(tentative and subject to 
change)

Board Meetings

Financial  repor t ing for 
the third quarter ending 
December 31, 2012.

By end of first week of 
February 2013

Financial results for the year 
ending March 31, 2013

By end of April 2013 if Un-
audited and May 2013 if 
audited

General Meeting

Annual General Meeting 
for the year ending March 
31, 2013

August / September 2013

Date of Book closure for 
dividend Dividend Payment 
Date

December 29, 2012.
Dividend if declared will be 
paid on or after December 
29, 2012., i.e. within 30 
days from the date of 
declaration at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting of 
the Company.

Listing on Stock Exchanges Glodyne Shares are traded 
on

1. Bombay Stock Exchange
 Limited     
 Scrip Code: 532672

2. National Stock Exchange
 of India Limited
    Scrip Code: GLODYNE

  The ISIN of Company’s equity shares with NSDL and CDSL  
is INE932G01021

  The Annual listing fees for the year 2012-13 has been duly 
paid to the stock exchanges pursuant to clause 38 of listing 
agreement in which the Company’s shares are listed.

 D)  Auditors Certificate on Corporate Governance

  As required by clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Auditors 
Certificate on compliance of the Corporate Governance norms 
is attached with this report.

 E)  Postal Ballots

  There are no ordinary or special resolution which is required 
to be passed by the shareholders through postal ballot for the 
year ended March 31, 2012.

 F)  Unclaimed Dividend

  As per the section 205 of the Companies Act, 1956, the 
Company is mandated to transfer the dividend amount that 
has been unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date 
of declaration from the Unpaid dividend account to Investor 
Education & Protection Fund (IEPF). The dividend schedule 
giving the details of the Company’s past dividend is given 
below, if unclaimed within a period of seven years, it will be 
transferred to IEPF:

Financial 
Year

Dividend 
per share 

(`)

Date of 
Declaration

Date on which 
dividend will 
become part 

of IEPF

2005-06 1.0 29.09.2006 28.09.2013

2006-07 1.2 24.09.2007 23.08.2014

2007-08 1.2 29.09.2008 28.09.2015

2008-09 4.2 24.08.2009 23.08.2016

2009-10 4.2 24.12.2010 23.12.2017

2010-11 4.2 15.09.2011 14.09.2018
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9) MARKET PRICE DATA

 a) Monthly high and low prices: 

  The monthly high and low prices of the Company’s shares 
traded at the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) for the year 
ended March 31, 2012, as given below. 

Month & Year BSE NSE

High (`) Low (`) High (`) Low (`)

April 2011 473.20 410.00 422.45 405.35

May 2011 442.00 314.45 392.25 378.35

June 2011 410.00 325.00 354.70 342.60

July 2011 351.00 287.10 315.75 305.05

August 2011 317.00 263.00 316.70 277.00

September 2011 394.00 310.00 386.90 368.00

October 2011 399.00 334.05 359.45 328.20

November 2011 352.95 190.55 254.00 242.50

December 2011 279.00 225.00 243.90 234.50

January 2012 255.75 225.00 253.50 245.50

February 2012 256.20 203.15 231.90 208.05

March 2012 386.50 210.50 358.45 347.15

 b)  Performance in comparison to broad based indices:

  The Performance of the Company’s Share relative to the BSE 
Sensex is given in the chart below:
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The Performance of the Company’s Share relative to the NSE Sensitive 
Index (S&P CNX Nifty index) is given in the chart below:
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10)  Registrar & Transfer Agent 

 Bigshare Services Private Limited is the Registrar & Share Transfer 
Agent (R&T Agent) of your Company. The R & T agent has adequate 
infrastructure and skill set to service the investors. Shareholders 
correspondence should be addressed to the R&T Agent of the 
Company, at the correspondence address mentioned in point 16 
below. 

11)  Share transfer system

 The request for transfer of shares held in physical form, are 
normally processed within 15 days, subject to lodgement of the 
duly completed documents, with the Registrar & Transfer Agent. The 
Registrar & Transfer Agent also processes all dematerialization / 
rematerialization requests, within the prescribed time. The Investors’ 
Grievance Committee is also empowered to approve the Share 
transfer requests, request relating to issue of share certificates on 
account of split / consolidation, duplicate issue, remat of shares 
etc. The Demat Status report and the bought and sold report in 
respect of the shares held in demat form are periodically reported 
to the Committee / Board.

12)  Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2012

 Distribution of shareholding by number of shares held:

Range (In Rs) Total                            
Holders

% of 
Total           

Holders

Total 
Holding

% of 
Total            

Capital

1-500 14120 91.19 1344742 2.99

501-1000 574 3.71 434522 0.97

1001 - 2000 328 2.11 481032 1.06

2001 - 3000 101 0.65 253413 0.57

3001 - 4000 73 0.47 251699 0.56

4001 - 5000 55 0.36 251501 0.56

5001 - 10000 72 0.47 508467 1.13

10001 - 999999999 162 1.04 41467834 92.16

Total 15485 100.00 44993210 100.00

 Distribution of shareholding by ownership

Cate- 
gory 
code

Category of shareholder Total 
Number of 

shares

Total 
shareholding 

as a 
percentage of 
total number 

of shares

(A) Shareholding of Promoter 
and Promoter Group

Indian

1. Promoter  Individuals 24399753 54.23

Promoter Group Company 1390000 3.09

Foreign

Total Shareholding of Promoter and 
Promoter Group

25789753 57.32

(B) Public shareholdings

Institutions

2 Financial Institutions/ Banks 191171 0.42

3 Foreign Institutional Investors 2920357 6.49
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Cate- 
gory 
code

Category of shareholder Total 
Number of 

shares

Total 
shareholding 

as a 
percentage of 
total number 

of shares

Non-institutions

4 Bodies Corporate 7264593 16.15

5 Individuals - 8147228 18.11

6 Venture Capital Funds 62656 0.14

7 Any Other - Clearing members 401788 0.89

- Trust 83 0.00

-  NRI 215581 0.48

Total Public Shareholding 19203457 42.68

TOTAL (A)+(B) 44993210 100.00

13) Dematerialization of shares

 Your Company’s shares can only be traded in compulsory demat 
segment in the stock exchanges. As on March 31, 2012, 95.73% 
of the Company’s shares are held in electronic form. The break up 
of shares in physical and demat form as on March 31, 2012 is as 
follows:

Category No. of shares % of total shares

Shares in Demat form 43072650 95.73

Shares in Physical form 1920560 4.27

Total 44993210 100.00

14)  Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs / warrants/convertible instruments and 
their conversion date and likely impact on equity

 During the year the Company in accordance with SEBI ICDR 
Regulations, 2009 had issued 15,00,000 warrants to M/s. Glodyne 

Global Pvt. Limited, a promoter group Company. Each warrant 
carries the right for allotment of one equity share of ` 6/- each at 
the price of 100 per share. 

 The Company has also allotted 10,00,000 equity shares of ̀  6/- each 
to M/s. Glodyne Global Pvt. Limited, a promoter group Company 
upon conversion of the 10,00,000 warrants at a price of ` 324/-.

 During the year, the Company has issued stock options under 
Glodyne Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2010. 

15) Compliance officer

 Mr. Amit Jaste is the Company Secretary and the Compliance 
Officer of the Company.

16)  Office locations

 Since the Company is in the service industry, it does not have any 
plant locations. The office locations are given below.

Registered Office: 801, Balarama Building, Bandra Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400 051.

Tech - Centre: Kshitij, Plot No. 38, Rajeev Gandhi 
Infotech Park, Hinjewadi, Pune – 411057

Overseas Subsidiary: Glodyne Technoserve Inc.,
 2700, Augustine Drive, Suite 190, Santa 

Clara, California 95054. U.S.A.

 DecisionOne Corporation, U.S.A.
 426 West Lancaster Avenue Devon, 

Pennsylvania 19333

17) Address for correspondence

 All correspondences by Shareholders should be addressed to the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent (R&T Agent) M/s. Bigshare Services 
Pvt. Ltd. or the Registered Office of the Company at the addresses 
mentioned below. 

 In case any shareholder is not satisfied with the response or do not 
get any response within reasonable period from the R&T Agent, 
they may approach the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
at the Registered Office / Corporate Office of the Company.

R&T Agent

Bigshare Services Pvt. 
Ltd. E-2, Ansa Industrial 
Estate Saki Vihar Road, 
Sakinaka Andheri (E), 
Mumbai - 72

Registered Office:

8 0 1 ,  B a l a r a m a 
Bldg., Bandra Kurla 
Complex, Bandra 
( E ) ,  M u m b a i  – 
400051

Corporate Office:

C/03, Ground Floor, 
Fortune 2000, Bandra 
K u r l a  C o m p l e x , 
Bandra (E), Mumbai 
– 400051

18) Auditor’s certificate on corporate governance

 As required under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Auditor’s 
certificate on compliance of the Corporate Governance norms is 
attached with this report.
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Declaration of Compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel

I, Annand Sarnaaik, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, hereby declare that pursuant to Clause 49 I (D) of the Listing Agreement, 
the Board members and Senior Management personnel have given affirmation about their compliance with their respective Code of Conduct of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2012.

     For Glodyne Technoserve Limited

     Sd/-
Place: Mumbai   Annand Sarnaaik
Date: December 06, 2012  Chairman & Managing Director 

Auditor’s Certificate of compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements under Clause 49 of Listing Agreement

To,

The Members of Glodyne Technoserve Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Glodyne Technoserve Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 
March 31, 2012, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai and National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited Mumbai. The compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company during the year for ensuring the 
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance referred to above. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company.

In our opinion, and to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, we hereby certify that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Agreements for the year ended March 31, 2012.

Based on confirmation received from the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, and representations made by management, we certify 
that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as at March 31, 2012.

We further state that our report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For N M Kapadia & Co
FRN: 107072W
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner

Date: December 06, 2012 
Membership No: 33697
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Industry overview and Glodyne Businesses

In today’s world, change is truly a constant. This is probably true of 
all facets of human and business life. In the Glodyne world, we are 
reminded of this everyday, every hour. All of our markets and businesses 
are undergoing constant change- throwing new challenges, opening 
up new opportunities.

IT is a big enabler of change. This is true for businesses, government, 
and rapidly, even consumer markets. On one hand, innovation continues 
to drive the frontier and push boundaries of what is possible. On the 
other, even conservative customers like government, banking and 
education are beginning to integrate these new technology offerings 
and enhance the experience of their beneficiaries. At Glodyne, we 
recognize the business opportunity behind the changing environment 
which is really in helping our clients better serve their beneficiaries 
using IT strategically and cost effectively. Much of the direction of 
work at Glodyne is driven with these guiding principles. Building IT 
platform based solutions allows us to meet these seemingly diverse 
objective. The markets Glodyne addresses are particularly dynamic- 
E-governance, financial inclusion, education, Infrastructure managed 
services. Here is a synopsis of each of the businesses and an analysis 
of the market context under which we operate.

Financial Inclusion

Market Environment: The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) wants to include 
every Indian to the country’s banking and financial system. Reserve 
Bank of India’s vision for 2020 is to open nearly 600 million new 
customers’ accounts and service them through a variety of channels. 
The government provides full support to this program because lack 
of financial inclusion results in lost growth opportunities, inadequate 
utilization of resources, exclusion of people from mainstream society 
and loss of control on cash from government programs

RBI provided clear mandate to banks to expand their base to the 
financially excluded sections of the society and provided them explicit 
targets in year 2011-12. Banks and their Business Correspondents, in 
turn made aggressive efforts to provide banking touch-points at each 
of the 72,721 uncovered villages with a population above 2,000 by the 
end of this fiscal. These efforts under the “Swabhimaan Campaign” 
were to be extended to habitations with population of more than 1,000 
in north eastern and hilly states.

Glodyne View: In Glodyne’s view, the implementation challenges in 
achieving true state of financial inclusion are significant. The biggest 
challenge banks and service provides are facing has been high levels 
of inactivity in the accounts. Estimates suggest more than 81% of 
accounts opened with the intent of delivering wholesome financial 
services have not been active. The remaining 19% accounts have been 
active on account of government payments under the Mahatma Gandhi 
National Rural Employment Guarantee Scheme (MGNREGS), , Indira 
Awaas Yojana and other programmes. Glodyne’s focus has been on 
the latter 19% of the accounts. In a path breaking move, Glodyne is 
now working towards a much broader financial inclusion program by 
collaborating with the Maharashtra government and several banks to 
make wage payment through the banking channel as a part of the 
Mahashramm project. Dialog is underway several other states to 
achieve similar outcomes. Having dabbled in accomplishing financial 
inclusion through not-for-profit or social motivations, many in the 
industry now understand that sustainability and commercial viability 
need to go together. We believe that despite unprecedented efforts to 

augment access to financial services meaningfully, the full potential is 
yet to be realised. We are currently working with banks, regulators and 
governments at various levels in this nascent and fragile sector to take 
financial inclusion to the next level.

E Governance

Market Environment: E-Governance in India has evolved from 
computerization of Government Departments to initiatives that 
encapsulate the finer points of Governance, such as citizen centricity, 
service orientation and transparency. Lessons from previous 
e-Governance initiatives have played an important role in shaping the 
progressive e-Governance strategy of the country. This approach has 
the potential of enabling huge savings in costs through sharing of core 
and support infrastructure, enabling interoperability through standards, 
and of presenting a seamless view of Government to citizens. The 
National e-Governance Plan (NeGP), takes a view of e-Governance 
initiatives across the country.

The National E-Governance plan created by the Government of India 
in 2006 outlines 27 Mission Mode Programs driven by Central and 
state governments, with some programs involving joint execution by 
the central and state governments

Glodyne View: In our view, the progression towards higher impact 
e governance is evident. The intent exists and plans are drawn up. 
However, we remain selective and cautious on this sector because of 
the execution challenges in an undertaking of this massive a scale. 
Some examples of the challenges we see are:

1. Achieving cross talk and synergies between the 27 mission mode 
programs

2. Proper understanding of the citizen lifecycle at the field level

3. Envisaging major process reform, not just minor reengineering in 
systems and procedures.

4. Keeping pace with trends even as technological projects are 
executed such as mobile, grid and cloud technologies

We selectively focus on projects to maximize shareholder value in 
the immediate term and strategically position us for recurring revenue 
streams over longer term

Our work in E-shakti project has won a large number of awards as 
a model E governance project by several independent agencies. 
To execute this project, Glodyne put together a complex set of 
technologies and processes. This resulted in MNREGS projects across 
various villages getting managed and tracked using a sophisticated 
system of biometric authentication, smart cards, hand held devices 
and automated payment to the beneficiaries using linkages with 
financial inclusion. Governments are getting excited about the potential 
of such an automation since it can go much beyond managing one 
program to creating a platform to significantly enhance the citizen 
services governance in general eg healthcare, direct subsidy transfer, 
education etc.

Glodyne also bagged a long term contract with the Government 
of Maharashtra to transform labor management in the state. This 
program, called Mahashramm, brings together technology, process re-
engineering and banking channels for the labor force in the state of 
Maharashtra and allows the government a much greater visibility and 
transparency in their ability to enforce labor laws for the greater good 
of the public.

Management Discussion and Analysis



28Glodyne Technoserve Limited Annual Report 2011-12

Infrastructure Managed Services

Market Environment: Global IMS Industry has a long legacy but a 
few years back, this Industry took a revolutionary turn for our country. 
Towards a cost reduction pursuit, global organizations started 
looking for low-cost, high-quality alternatives, and they sought global 
delivery models to achieve these goals. What began as a set of 
initial experiments has today become a tried and tested approach 
to managing costs. As per a recent Report by NASSCOm-McKinsey 
titled ‘Remote Infrastructure Management Services: Igniting India’s 
leadership (2008)’, globally, the RIM industry is expected to achieve 
a penetration of 25 to 27 per cent by 2013, a US$20 billion to US$21 
billion increase over the revenues of about US$6 billion to US$7 billion 
today. The Report goes on to state that with Global CIOs’ continued 
comfort with India as “primary” offshore destination, the country will 
capture greater than 50 per cent of the world market i.e., US$13 billion 
to US$15 billion in revenue by 2013, which would create 325,000 to 
375,000 jobs.

Recent surveys of over 140 CIOs by McKinsey & Company suggest 
that, as customer environments mature, they are more likely to adopt 
Remote Infrastructure Management. While 18 per cent of CIOs 
surveyed have offshored some part of infrastructure management, an 
additional 7 per cent plan to offshore in the next three years while a 
further 15 per cent plan to offshore, though without a specific timeline. 
Drivers for this are fairly straightforward- the classic benefit versus 
costs story : CIOs experience a reduction of almost 25 per cent in their 
IT infrastructure budget. They are also getting better service, quality 
and, sometimes significant transformational value from their Indian 
Remote Infrastructure Management partners.

Glodyne View: For India to realize the full potential of the RIM 
opportunity, companies must, in an organized way address several 
success factors including standardizing delivery models to achieve 
process sophistication and maturity, enhance operational excellence 
to match global peers by investing in tools, methodologies, efficient 
processes and enhance sales and marketing capabilities. Decision One 
provided a unique opportunity to Glodyne to access and participate in 
the global market. In the past year, Glodyne successfully integrated 
the Decision One organization in the global organization structure. 
This allowed us to create a global delivery structure and invest in the 
aforementioned success factors across all our delivery channels : 
onsite and offshore

The US market continues to rapidly evolve. The industry is seeing 
consolidation and mature pricing mechanisms. These trends are 
being observed across the centralized and decentralized computing 
environments. Cost efficient platforms, marketing savvy and continuous 
innovation remain key to success in this environment. These have 
remained primary areas strategic areas for Glodyne and we are 
already seeing fruits of clear strategic focus in terms of client retention, 
new client acquisitions and rising profitability from the operations

Other sectors: Amongst other sectors, Glodyne continues to invest in 
Education sector- a USD 43BB market, growing at 13% annually. Our 
focus in the education space has been to

a) continue to penetrate in new and diverse sets of schools and 
colleges

b) Strengthen our base within existing customer sets with additional 
content based offerings

This approach has proven to be highly rewarding. We expect this trend 
to continue in the coming years

Review of financial and operating performance

During the financial year ending March 2012, the Company revenues 
grew by 63.07% to ` 161247.06 Lakhs and profit after tax by 78.31% 
to 25704.84 Lakhs. Over the last 3 years we have grown our revenues 
at the CAGR of 50.10%.

1. Authorized share capital: The Company has an authorized 
share capital of ` 5910 Lakhs comprising ` 900 Lakhs equity shares of 
` 6/- each and 85 Lakhs preference shares of ` 6/- each as of March 
31, 2012.

2. Paid up share capital: The Company has a paid-up capital of 
`  2699.59 Lakhs as on 31st March 2012. During the year the company 
has allotted 10 Lakhs equity shares of ` 6/- each as preferential shares 
and further the company has also allotted 167930 equity shares of 
`  6/- each on exercise of ESOP by employees.

3. Equity shares: The Company has instituted various Employee 
Stock Option Plans (ESOP). These options vest over a specified period 
subject to employee fulfilling certain conditions. Upon vesting the 
employees are eligible to apply and secure allotment of the Company’s 
equity shares at a price determined on the date of the grant of options. 
During the year eligible employees were allotted on exercise of the 
options under various Employee Stock Option Plans instituted by the 
Company.

4. Reserves and Surplus: The Reserves and Surplus stood at `  
78862.79 Lakhs, increase in Reserves and Surplus due to plough back 
of maximum profits and increase in securities premium by ` 4,358.21 
Lakhs. 

5. Secured Loan: Secured Loans have increased by ` 16743.78 
Lakhs primarily due to ECB Loan for Capital Expenditure and increase 
in working capital facilities from banks to meet growing business needs.

6. Fixed Assets: Additions to fixed assets is primarily on account 
of Capital Expenditure incurred for various E-governence/Financial 
inclusion projects, further company has invested ` 21917.30 Lakhs 
mainly in technology assets.

BUSINESS ANALYSIS 

Glodyne is primarily in the business of technology infrastructure 
management services, focused on optimizing the operational expense 
of our clients, a core expense they can’t do away with unlike other 
capex intensive initiatives which could go slow in case of a slowdown.

 Geographical Presence: In 2011-2012, the company has 
presence in India  and United States of America. The company 
is headquartered in Mumbai, India with sales and support 
presence across India and US. The North America operations are 
headquartered at Philadelphia which ensures support and sales 
across N. America.

 Sector presence: The company services across ten sectors 
Government/PSU, IT/ITES, BFSI, Manufacturing, Retail, Media, 
Telecom, Education, Travel and Healthcare across India and 
North America.

 Mergers and acquisition: In the year 2011 - 2012, the company 
initiated the acquisition of Comat Technologies. Comat is a 
specialist e-governance management services company, which 
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has implemented strong solutions in the Food and Civil Supplies 
and UID implementation across states in the Country.

 Through the acquisition the company has been able to enhance 
its project implementation expertise as it provides a strong back 
ward integration strategy for the Company.

 Awards and Recognition: During the year under review, your 
Company was awarded with the following Awards:

‘Best Under a Billion’ 2011 award for the year by Forbes 
Asia

‘Outstanding Entrepreneurship Award’ awarded to Mr. 
Annand Sarnaaik at the The Asia Pacific Entrepreneurship 
Awards 2011

‘E-Shakti’ project of Glodyne was adjudged as the winner at 
‘EDGE’ awards at INTEROP 2011.

‘E-Shakti’ was declared as the best ‘ICT initiative in the 
Country’ at the PC Quest 2011 Awards

“Best Government to 
Citizen Initiative” Company at the ‘E-World Awards 2011’

Education Managed Services was announced 
as the winner at “World Education Award 2011”

Glodyne received ‘Asia’s Best Employer Brand Award 
2011’ under the categories of Best Employer Brand – 
Talent Management and in the Continuous Innovation at 
HR Strategy

top performing mid sized companies 
by Inc India

‘Deloitte Technology Fast 500 AsiaPac 
Program’ 2011 and ‘Deloitte Technology Fast 50 India 
Program’ 2011

 Geographic Mix: For the year, about 64% of the Glodyne’ 
revenues were from the domestic market. The balance 36% of 
revenues comes from the North America where the company has 
presence through its subsidiaries.

Opportunities and risks

Opportunities

1. Our India businesses stand at an important juncture where we 
have gained adequate foothold on some of the most crucial 
sectors of the Indian economy. Owing to the market growth, these 
sectors: Education, E-governance are termed as sunrise sectors 
of the economy. Our success depends on our ability to expand 
our scale of operations to execute on our customer contracts and 
promises

2. Our US business has significant growth potential both from a 
revenue and profitability standpoint. The long standing presence 
of the Decision One entity provides us with strong credibility and 
access to important customer base in US and North American 
markets. Our success depends on our ability to leverage our 
scale in US to global markets, expand our service offerings and 
continuously invest in optimizing our delivery platform

3. Overall, the global Glodyne corporation is in a strong position 
to capitalize on the opportunities created by market trends and 
acquisitions. To prepare for such opportunities, the corporation 

will invest significantly in making its processes and capabilities 
robust in each of the focus areas. Examples of such investments 
include:

 a. Refinement of our global planning and performance 
management processes and systems that will provide 
detailed view on financial and operational metrics in the 
organization

 b. Enhancement of our global incentive and long term pay 
management system to extend the performance pay 
platform to the global organization for better executive and 
organizational alignment to corporate objectives

 c. Launch of leadership development and people development 
initiatives to develop pipeline of leaders in the organization

Risks

In an economically uncertain global environment, several risks can 
arise. Also, large scale project execution can result in operational risks. 
Glodyne is well aware of these risks and several others that a complex 
business like ours can face. We have taken several steps to address 
these risks

1. Strategic and competitive risks: Significant shifts in industry 
trends, consolidations and changes in customer preferences can 
result in strategic risks. Some aspects of our business especially 
the IMS tends to be highly competitive. Changes in the competitive 
posture including service offerings, price points and relationships 
can result in business risks. These risks are mitigated by way of 
customer level analysis, planning and risk adjustments in the 
forecasting process

2. Operational and Execution Risks: Our success in meeting our 
revenue guidance has a high degree of dependency on our ability 
to execute against large scale customer contracts. Any large 
scale implementation effort with complex interdependencies can 
have operational risks associated with it. These risks are very 
well recognized within the Glodyne environment and a significant 
amount of effort is expended in business and operational planning 
for each project. Each project has its own financial and operational 
metrics that are planned, linked to performance measures in form 
of explicit targets and reviewed on a weekly basis. Projects roll up 
into Revenue Business Units, headed by a seasoned executive. 
The Revenue Business Units are supported by Shared Services 
Units that carry deep areas of expertise on subjects like IT, 
Software, procurement, vendor management etc. The company 
employs a large number of six sigma black belts and process 
experts to ensure our processes are built and managed by strong, 
capable people.

3. Security Risks: Glodyne teams often work in remote places 
and handle sensitive data collection and management work. 
The security vulnerabilities in such situations can be physical or 
information related. Our IT Shared Services Unit oversees the 
security aspects of our projects to ensure that the physical access 
to our premises is tightly controlled using the same biometric 
authentication that we provide as a service to our clients on 
several of our projects; the information security is managed using 
a series of very stringent guidelines and toolsets that govern the 
usage of data. To address any disasters, a business continuity 
plan is drawn up and executed by the IT SSU based on the 
requirements of each project.



30Glodyne Technoserve Limited Annual Report 2011-12

4. Macroeconomic/Policy risks: Our business is affected by the global 
macro economic environment and has a degree of dependency 
on public policies especially in the Indian context. These global 
risks manifest themselves in the growth expectations of our North 
American business at a strategic level and, the foreign exchange 
fluctuations that can occur from time to time at a tactical level. Our 
forecasting and risk mitigation processes these uncertainties into 
account by risk adjusting the forecasts and by hedging against 
the fluctuations.

 The risks arising out of the public policy changes or political re-
alignment pertain to the domestic market. While some degree of 
risk is inherent when doing significant volumes of e-governance 
business, a large portion of the risk is mitigated by appropriate 
selection of the programs. Glodyne participates in relatively few 
of the government mandated mission mode programs that have 
lesser political risks than others, owing to their maturity and 
impact on a large portion of the population.

5. Foreign Exchange: The company has part of its business coming 
from the US geography. Huge fluctuations in the currency 
exchange rate could affect the company’s onsite business.

 The company has a defined policy for managing its foreign 
exchange exposure. The company tracks the foreign exchange 
markets closely and takes appropriate hedging decisions from time 
to time. With the remote delivery which mainly addresses the export 
market, the company also has a natural hedge to a limited extent.

Outlook: The management is focused to build the company into a 
leader in the global technology IMS market. With the IMS industry 
opening up huge opportunity for Indian companies, Glodyne is focused 
on capitalizing on the same by providing high quality services to global 
clients through a robust onsite- remote delivery model. The company 
would continue to grow its client base and client share with special 
focus on the DecisionOne clients as they have an appetite for IMS 
off shoring and for geographic de-risking. The company has built 
a strong execution base in the Indian market and it envisions huge 
market creating opportunities in India in the Government, Banking and 
Education sectors. The education managed services, e-governance 
managed services, financial inclusion services, and onsite- remote 
IMS services will be key growth driver for the company in the future. 
Keeping in view the potentials of the projects in hand, credentials in the 
domestic market and the company’s expertise in the focused area, the 
outlook remains to be positive.

The acquisition of DecisionOne enabled Glodyne to add fortune 100 
client base, long entrenched relationships, and a business where there 
were huge opportunities to work on cost optimization and revenue 
expansion plans. The various integration plans were prepared but 
the implementation of the same was delayed by 15 months due to 
unavailability of Working Capital at DecisionOne.  During this entire 
period Glodyne India supported the US operations and with the planned 
Capex and Opex for projects in India, it created a temporary difficult 
situation for the Company.  The team has been working relentlessly to 
bridge the gap and is confident of getting through the current situation 
in the near future. The Company has now re-calibrated its plans and is 
on course to achieve what was planned for the geography.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY: Glodyne places a 
huge emphasis on fostering a culture of teamwork and intends to allow 
people within the company to realize human potential. The company 
has built a unique work environment that brings together talent from 
multiple backgrounds and skills sets to work together and feel a sense 
of belonging to the team. The success of this can be judged from the 
low level of attrition that the company has been able to maintain and 
the stability in its senior and middle management teams.

The company had identified the key risks and control process to 
mitigate the same. The company has been partnering with various 
clients for implementing large projects in the country. To ensure 
support the growth and expanded services, the internal organization 
re-alignment program which was initiated last year would provide long 
term benefits. In addition, the leadership alignment program ‘ LEAP’ 
which is focused on identification and grooming of future Glodyne 
leaders is been regularly conducted.The company is continuously 
upgrading its internal control systems by measuring state of controls 
at various locations. Controls in the management system have been 
strengthened with help of review conducted by the formation of 
corporate audit team. The team ensures regular reviewing of financial 
and risk management policies, significant audit findings, the adequacy 
of internal controls and compliance with the accounting standards.

The Company also started a key employee support program to facilitate 
them with work–life balance. There are counselors who support the 
ones who need any kind of support through online, over telephone or 
one–one medium. For the female team members there were special 
scheme launched like leadership development, support group for 
expecting mothers, generating health awareness, etc. Also, Glodyne 
Care Foundation’s flagship program ‘Nanhe Kadam’, which is a unique 
employee engagement program in the area of children’s education and 
health has spread across three states now, an is growing stronger day 
by day.
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Auditors’ Report 

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of GLODYNE 
TECHNOSERVE LIMITED (“the Company”) as at 31st March, 2012 

of the Company for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. 

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 

in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Board of Directors (“the Board”) in its meeting held on 25th May 

dividend and consequent impact on provision for tax on proposed 

circumstances and restricted them only to the amendment in the 

report that:

the purpose of the audit;

  i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs 
of the company as at 31st March, 2012;

 N M Kapadia & Co
Chartered Accountants

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
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[Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of even date to the 
members of Glodyne Technoserve Limited]

particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 

records and physical inventory. 

assumption.

opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has maintained proper records 

records.

(iii) (a) The Company has granted unsecured loans to Six parties 
covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the 

` 
`

explanations given to us, the rate of interest and other 
terms and conditions for the loans mentioned in para (iii) 

the Company. 

regularity of repayment of the Principal amount and interest 
thereon, does not arise.

question of examining the overdue amount and commenting 

for the recovery of such loans does not arise.

 (e) In our opinion and according to the information and 

parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 
301 of the Act. As such paragraph 4(iii) (f) and (g) of the 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures 

(v) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and 

particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in 

explanations given to us, the transactions made in 
pursuance of such contracts or arrangements exceeding 

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits from the 

carry out its internal audit function. In our opinion, internal audit 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and 

of the Company. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us 

statutory dues relating to Provident fund and Employee 
State Insurance.  However, TDS (` 260.25 Lakhs), Dividend 
Distribution Tax (` 299.44 Lakhs), Service Tax (`102.82 
Lakhs - as estimated by the Management), and Value 
added Tax (` 46.00 Lakhs) have remained outstanding as at 
31st March 2012 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable.

Annexure to the Auditors’ Report
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` ` `

the Commissioner (Appeals).

(x) The Company neither has accumulated losses as at 31st March 
2012 nor has it incurred any cash losses during the current 

that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of its dues to 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not granted any loans and 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation 

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company is not dealing or trading in shares, 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the 

and considering long term involvement of these companies, in 

the interest of the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has applied the term loans for the 

(xvii) Based on the information and explanations given to us and on 
an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company, 

(xviii) During the year under Audit, the Company has issued Equity 
Shares amounting to `
one of the Companies covered in the register maintained under 
section 301 of the Act. Besides, the company has also issued 

` 60 Crores to the said party during 
the year. In our opinion and according to the information and 

the Company. 

commenting on the securities created in respect thereof does 
not arise. 

 N M Kapadia & Co
Chartered Accountants

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
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(` in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS NOTE  AS AT       
31.03.2012 

 AS AT       
31.03.2011 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

 Shareholders' Funds

  (a) Share Capital 3  2,699.59  2,629.52 

3 e  21.19 

  (c)  Reserves and Surplus 4  78,662.79 

5  1,500.00  1,080.00 

  (e) Share application money pending allotment 6  25.21  4.08 

 Non-Current Liabilities

 14,686.40 

8  705.52  1,620.38 

9  112.22 

 Current Liabilities

10  18,613.49  13,261.44 

11  4,657.04 

12  8,930.94  1,569.28 

13  13,731.94 

TOTAL  144,346.33 

II. ASSETS

 Non-Current Assets

14

14.1  26,946.02 

14.2  3,131.80 

14.3  600.80 

 -    145.84 

15  18,712.29  15,154.85 

  (c) Long term loans and advances 16  37,722.32  16,215.45 

 Current Assets

  (a) Inventories  422.60 

18  30,117.12  18,139.01 

19  2,951.59 

20  23,005.23 

  (e)  Other current assets 21  736.56  68.96 

TOTAL  144,346.33 

III. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2012

As per our report of even date
For N M Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner

Date: 25th May 2012

(Except as to Note 4(e) referred to in para 4 of 

For and behalf of the Board

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & 

Managing Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Director

R. S. P. Sinha
Director

Bryan Sanderson
Director

Dr. Mohan Kaul
Director

Samar Ray
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Shantanu Rooj

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary Date: 25th May 2012

(E



35Glodyne Technoserve Limited Annual Report 2011-12

(` in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS NOTE  For the 
year ended 
31.03.2012 

year ended 
31.03.2011 

I. Revenue from Operations 22  155,765.32 

II. Other Income 23  5,481.74 

TOTAL  161,247.06  98,881.83 

III. Expenses:

24  14,163.04  8,548.69 

25  4,281.26  2,054.66 

14  4,079.42  2,348.84 

(d) Other Expenses 26  100,953.55  65,905.33 

TOTAL  123,477.27 

IV. PROFIT BEFORE TAX  37,769.79  20,024.30 

V. Tax expense:

(a) Current tax  (13,500.00)  (5,100.00)

 520.20  (0.02)

(c) Deferred tax  914.86  (508.13)

TOTAL (12,064.94) (5,608.15)

VI. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  25,704.84  14,416.15 

VII. Earning per equity share:

(a) Basic  58.16  33.38 

53.11 30.28

VIII. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As per our report of even date
For N M Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner

Date: 25th May 2012

(Except as to Note 4(e) referred to in para 4 of 

For and behalf of the Board

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & 

Managing Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Director

R. S. P. Sinha
Director

Bryan Sanderson
Director

Dr. Mohan Kaul
Director

Samar Ray
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Shantanu Rooj

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary Date: 25th May 2012

(E
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended 31.03.2012  Year ended 31.03.2011 
I. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

 37,769.79  20,025.00 

 4,079.42  2,348.84 
 4,281.26  2,054.66 

Interest received  (1,562.95)  (1,062.69)
Dividend received  (0.72)  (0.56)
Rent Received  -  (18.22)

 5.27  (0.03)
 -  (0.00)

 21.19 
Impairment of Investments  - 

 98.85 
 (3,731.83)

 (1.54)  3,188.94  (2.08)
 40,958.73  24,395.83 

 (265.23)  289.44 
 (33,246.04)  (1,483.46)

 6,720.18  (26,791.09)  439.61 
Cash generated from operations  14,167.64  23,641.43 
Taxes paid  (2,333.26)  (4,318.46)

 11,834.38  19,322.96 
II. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Interest received  1,562.95  1,062.69 
Dividend received  0.72  0.56 
Rent received  -  18.22 

 (3,561.06)  (11,340.93)
 3.62 

 -  0.00 
 (8,647.31)  (18,903.11)

Expenses on Amalgamation  -  (126.34)
 (552.65)

 (22,731.75)  (5,134.25)
 0.25  0.40 

Net Cash from Investment Activities  (33,925.23)
III. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares (including Securities Premium)  3,344.21  10,438.61 
 1,500.00  1,080.00 

Increase in Share Application monies  25.21  4.08 
Increase in Capital reserve  -  108.53 

 22,425.98  6,213.65 
 (4,281.26)  (2,054.66)

Dividend paid (including Dividend Tax)  (2,026.06)  (1,104.02)
Net Cash from Financing Activities  20,988.07  14,686.18 
Net (Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalent  (1,103)  (204.83)

 3,325.06  3,529.89 
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of year  2,222.28  3,325.06 

 729.31 
Cash and Bank Balances at the end of year (as per Note 19)  2,951.59 

IV. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  1-43

As per our report of even date
For N M Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner

Date: 25th May 2012

(Except as to Note 4(e) referred to in para 4 of 

For and behalf of the Board

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & 

Managing Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Director

R. S. P. Sinha
Director

Bryan Sanderson
Director

Dr. Mohan Kaul
Director

Samar Ray
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Shantanu Rooj

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary Date: 25th May 2012

(E
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1) COMPANY OVERVIEW:

 Glodyne Technoserve Limited (‘the Company”) is engaged in 
Technology Infrastructure Management Services and Application 

management in India and Overseas. The Company has head 

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

i. Basis of Accounting

Government of India under Section 211(3C) of the Companies 
Act, 1956, various pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”), and the relevant provisions of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”).

revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in 
the accounting policy hitherto in use. The Management evaluates 
all recently issued or revised Accounting Standards on an ongoing 

Schedule VI does not impact the recognition and measurement 

iii. Use of estimates

employee retirement plans, etc. The recognition, measurement, 

to a greater extent. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.

iv. Revenue Recognition

 Direct revenue of the Company comprises the income from 

 a) Technology Infrastructure Management Services – This 
represents Technology Integration and Management 

Services. Technology Integration activities include Technology 

Integration is recognised on delivery to the customer and 

the individual contracts. Management Services represents 

thereon. Revenue from Management Services is recognised 
over the life of the contracts. Maintenance revenue on expired 

delivered to the customers as per the terms of the contract. 

 Indirect Revenue of the Company generally comprises the 

and Depreciation/Amortisation

development include expenditure incurred for acquiring 
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respective individual estimated useful lives (not exceeding 

land is amortised over the life of the lease.

reporting date;

months after the reporting date.

criteria:

cycle;

date;

 c) The company does not have an unconditional right to defer 

reporting date.

incurred.

 Trade Investments are investments made to enhance the 

intention at the time of purchase. Investments that are readily 

are stated at Cost. A provision for diminution in value is made 
to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of long 
term investments. Current Investments, if any, are valued at 

Management Services of the Company and the same is valued at 

 

 Transactions in foreign currencies are generally recorded at the 
exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary 
items denominated in foreign currency and outstanding at the 
Balance Sheet date are translated at the exchange rate ruling on 
that date. Exchange differences on foreign exchange transactions 

investments.

 

 

  A. Provident Fund (PF) & Employees’ State Insurance 

employees of the Company are entitled to receive 

addition, some employees of the Company are 

  

at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of 

losses are recognised immediately to the Statement of 
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 Tax expense comprises of Current and Deferred tax. Provision 

realised in future.

amount. The Impairment Loss is recognised as an expense in the 

 

issued during the year, if any.

all dilutive potential equity shares.

months or less. 

 All material events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are 

3) SHARE CAPITAL
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2012 As at 31.03.2011

Number of 
Shares

  Amount  
Shares

Amount

Authorised

Equity Shares of  ` `
each  90,000,000  5,400.00  90,000,000  5,400.00 

Preference Shares of ` ` 
 8,500,000  510.00  8,500,000  510.00 

TOTAL  98,500,000  5,910.00  98,500,000  5,910.00 

Issued, subscribed & fully 
paid up

Equity Shares of ` `
each  44,993,210  2,699.59  43,825,280  2,629.52 

TOTAL  44,993,210  2,699.59  43,825,280  2,629.52

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning 
and at the end of the reporting period

(`

Particulars 31st March, 2012 31st March, 2011

Number  Amount  Amount  

Equity Shares
Outstanding at the  43,825,280  2,629.52  2,251.33 

Add: Issued during the 
year

 1,167,930  70.08  6,303,160 

Outstanding at the 
end of the year

 44,993,210  2,699.59  43,825,280  2,629.52

b. Term/rights attached to shares

 (i) The  company  has  only  one  class  of  equity shares having 
a par value of `
is  entitled  to  one  vote  per share. The company declares 
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed  

the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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4)  RESERVES AND SURPLUS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
31.03.2012 

 As at 
31.03.2011 

a) Capital Reserve
 943.30  961.11 

Add: Addition during the year  -    108.53 
 943.30  1,069.64 

Less : Expenditure incurred on 
Amalgamation  -    126.34 
Closing Balance  943.30  943.30 

b) Securities Premium Account#

 14,794.10  2,054.38 
Add: Received on Issue of Shares  4,358.21 
Closing balance  19,152.31 

c) General Reserve
 4,257.91  2,816.29 

 -    1,441.62 

Closing Balance  4,257.91 
d)

 28,683.02 
 25,704.84  14,416.15 
 54,387.86  32,269.88 

Transfer to General Reserve  -    (1,441.62)
Proposed Dividend (Amount per share 
` `

 (67.62)  (1,845.80)

Tax on Proposed Dividend  (10.97)  (299.44)

and Loss 
 54,309.27  28,683.02 

TOTAL  78,662.79 

 Foot note:

 # During the year, `
Securities Premium Account on account of conversion of 

`
`  

(`
(25,55,348) shares under ESOP scheme. (Previous year include 
preferential allotment of 24,22,035 shares) 

e) The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 

of `

to ` 0.15 per share. The Board accordingly also approved the 

`
` 

` 

opnion of the Management, no transfer is requried considering the 
revision in the proposed dividend. As a result, the Surplus in the 

  In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of 

 (ii) The authorised capital of the company also comprises 
`

c. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries /
associates 

Particulars  31st March, 2012  31st March, 2011 

No. of Shares  NIL  NIL

d. Shares reserved for issue under options:

further details refer to note no 41.

e.  During the year, the Company has granted 6,80,220 (12,40,980) 

for Employee compensation costs in respect of grant of options. 
The employee compensation cost equals to the difference 

year amounted to ` `

f. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, share issued 
for consideration other than cash and shares bought back 
during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the 
reporting date:

Particulars 31st March, 
2012  (Nos)

31st March, 
2011 (Nos)

Equity  shares  allotted  as 

and  securities premium 
account

 24,323,910  24,323,910

g. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the 

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
shareholders

31st March, 2012 31st March, 2011

Number % holding in 
the shares

% holding in 
the shares

Equity shares of 
` 
paid up

1  15,235,210 33.86%  15,135,210 34.54%

2 Divvyani A.  9,164,543 20.37%  8,984,543 20.50%
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5) MONEY RECEIVED AGAINST ISSUED OF SHARE WARRANTS:

`

the company at a premium of ̀  

the date of Balance sheet, the company has received ` 1,500.00 

6) SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTMENT:

 
`

` 
th April, 2012.

7) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Secured
a Term Loan from Banks
(i) Rupee loans  8,711.02 

Less: Current Maturities  3,717.91  503.45 
Total (i)  4,993.10 

(ii)  10,264.58 
 612.80 

Total (ii)  9,651.78 
Total (a) (i+ii) 14,644.88

b Vehicle Loans from Banks  121.24 
Less: Current Maturities  79.72  66.14 

Total (b)  41.52  104.36 
TOTAL (a+b)  14,686.40 

7.2) Detail of Securities and Terms of Repayment

 a) ICICI Bank:

  Outstanding Loan as on 31st March 2012 is ̀

nd charge on current assets of the company. 

in 18 monthly installments including moratarium period of 

 b) Ratnakar Bank Limited: 

  Outstanding Loan as on 31st March 2012 is ̀

guarantee of the promoters of the company. The loan is 

years and 11 months.

 c) Corporation Bank:    

  Outstanding Loan as on 31st March 2012 is `

` 45.45 

 d) DBS Bank:

  Outstanding Loan as on 31st March 2012 is ` 10,264.58 

asssets purchased out of loan funds and pari passu charge 

 e) Vehicle Loans are secured against hypothecation of 
respective vehicles.

8) DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY / ASSET:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March 

2012

As at
31st March 

2011

account of:
Depreciation 4,636.99 1,652.21
Deferred Tax Asset on account 
of:

(3,931.47) (31.84)

705.52

9) LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

 112.22 

Total  112.22 

10) SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

a) Secured
Loans Repayable on Demand

No. 10.1)  16,113.49  13,261.44 

Total (a)  16,113.49  13,261.44 

b) Unsecured
 2,500.00 

Total (b)  2,500.00 
Total (a+b)  18,613.49  13,261.44

10.1

of certain Directors and pledge of certain Shares of the Promoters. 
` ` 13,200.00 
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11) TRADE PAYABLES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Sundry Creditors
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises  -   
(Refer note. 36)

Others  4,657.04 
Total  4,657.04 

12) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Current maturities of long term 

a) Term Loans from Bank
(i)  Rupee loans

 Current Maturities  3,717.91  503.45 

Current Maturities  612.80 
b) Vehicle loans from Banks

Current Maturities  79.72  66.14 

c) Interest Accured But Not Due  -    0.12 

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

d) Income received in advance  120.37  209.15 

e) Unpaid dividends  5.14 
(There are no amount due and 

f)  2,085.24  449.33 

g)  1,633.40 
h)  676.36  338.38 

Total  8,930.94  1,569.28

13) SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

 3.73 

Others Provisions:

Proposed Dividend  67.62  1,845.18 

Dividend Tax  310.41 

Income Tax (net of relative payments, if 
any)  13,350.18 

Total  13,731.94 

 14) FIXED ASSETS:
(` in Lakhs)

 Particulars  Gross Block  Accumulated Depreciation  Net Block 
 Balance as 

at 1 April 
2011 

 Additions 
during the 

year 

 Deductions 
during the 

year 

 Balance as 
at 31 March 

2012 

 Balance as 
at 1 April 

2011 

Depreciation 
charge for 

the year 

Depreciation 
on 

deductions 

 Balance as 
at 31 March 

2012 

 Balance as 
at 31 March 

2012 

 Balance as 
at 31 March 

2011 
14.1 Tangible Assets 
 1 Land 

Lease Hold Land  112.59  112.59  6.22  1.19  7.41  105.18  106.36 
 2 Buildings  

Lease Hold 
Premises  48.65  48.65  9.52  39.13  39.92 
Lease Hold 
Improvements  82.94  82.94  5.03  82.94  -    5.03 

 769.91  12.55  87.72  682.20 
 3 Plant & Machineries  1.49  1.49  0.22  0.30  1.19  1.26 
 4  564.46  569.20  198.32  35.89  234.21  334.98  366.14 
 5 Vehicles  23.22  (9.33)  380.61  64.88  34.81  (3.81)  95.87  284.74  301.84 
 6  409.39  93.88  18.55  112.43  296.96 

Electrical Installation  161.85  161.85  43.54  51.23  110.62  118.31 
 8 Computer Systems  8,451.82  30,369.12  2,593.84  5,278.12  25,091.01 
 9  1.33    1.33  1.33    1.33  -   

Total  (9.33)  32,907.07  3,164.04  2,800.84  (3.81)  5,961.06  26,946.02 
14.2 Intangible Assets 
 1  645.45  4,393.44  1,394.05  2,154.26  2,239.19  2,353.95 
 2 Patents & 

Copyrights  558.56  558.56  486.49  558.56  -   
 3 

 2,231.52    2,231.52  892.61  446.30   1,338.91  892.61  1,338.91 
Total  645.45  7,183.52  4,051.72  3,131.80 

14.3 Capital Work In 
Progress  253.10   600.80     -    600.80 

Total  253.10  600.80  -    600.80 

Grand Total  (9.33)  40,691.39  (3.81)  10,012.79  30,678.60  11,885.95 

PREVIOUS YEAR  4,919.49  (0.81)  17,475.43  3,583.23  2,354.39  (0.44)  5,937.18  11,538.25 
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15) NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Trade Investments (Valued at cost, 

Investment in Equity instruments 
(Unquoted, fully paid up)
Investment in subsidiaries
a) 25,20,000 (25,20,000) Equity Shares 

 354.60  354.60 

` `

Shares of Smaarftech Technologies 
Private Limited  459.76 

` `

c)
Shares of Glodyne Technoserve 
Inc. USA  15,475.15  11,914.09 

d)
of Glodyne Technoserve Inc. USA  2,175.29 

e)

 171.05 
Less : Provision for diminution in the 
value of Investments  (171.05)

0.00 0.00
f) 5,51,482 (5,51,482) Equity Shares 

 247.48 

g) 14,95,500 (14,95,500) Equity shares 

Singapore  465.63  465.63 

Less : Provision for diminution in the 
value of Investments  (465.63)  (465.63)

Others
h) 100 (2,600) Equity Shares of 

 0.01  0.26 
` `

i)
 -   

` `
  

TOTAL  18,712.29  15,154.85

Footnote:  Aggregate provision for diminution made in respect of the 
`

16) LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

a) Security Deposits 

Unsecured, considered good  1,750.41  893.68 

Total (a)  1,750.41  893.68 

b) Loans and advances to related 
parties 

Unsecured, considered good  24,612.60  14,631.89 

advances  56.58  46.55 

estimated time frame of recovery as 

(Refer note 32 for details)

Total (b)  24,556.02  14,585.34 

c) Other loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to Suppliers  11,261.48 

Prepaid Expenses  154.42  256.50 

Total (c)  11,415.90 

TOTAL (a to c)  37,722.32  16,215.45

17) INVENTORIES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Goods for Resale

Computer Equipments, Peripherals and 
 422.60 

TOTAL  422.60 

18) TRADE RECEIVABLES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

a) Others

Unsecured, considered good 17,697.04

Total (a) 17,697.04

(Over six months from the date they 

Unsecured, considered good 12,420.08 811.12

296.14 220.49

12,716.22 1,031.60

296.14 220.49

Total (b) 12,420.08 811.12

TOTAL (a to b) 30,117.12 18,139.01
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19) CASH AND BANK BALANCES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

On current accounts 62.29 63.96

Currency Account
- 11.60

6.52 29.94

(ii) Other Bank Balances

a) Dividend Accounts 5.14

for more than 3 months
2,148.33 3,216.85

c) Margin Money Deposit 339.31

reserve account
390.00

TOTAL 2,951.59

20) SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

a) Loans and advances to related 
parties

Unsecured, considered good 2,629.72

estimated time frame of recovery as 

(Refer note 32 for details)

Sub Total (a) 2,629.72

Security Deposit

Unsecured, considered good 266.92

Sub Total (b) 266.92

c) Other loans and advances

Advance to Suppliers 19,473.89 6,168.98

Advance to Employees 93.07

Others

Prepaid Expenses 541.64 206.03

Sub Total (c) 20,108.60 6,592.28

TOTAL(a to c) 23,005.23

21) OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

a) 693.23 21.55

Accruals

Interest accrued on deposits 43.33

TOTAL 736.56 68.96

22) REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the 
year ended 
31.03.2012

year ended 
31.03.2011

Sales of services

Techonlogy IMS 155,237.77 88,968.25

527.55 9,239.20

TOTAL 155,765.32

23) OTHER INCOME (NET):
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the 
year ended 
31.03.2012

year ended 
31.03.2011

a) Interest Income
1,367.94 900.51

Interest on Income Tax Refund 4.19
190.82 148.31

Dividend Income 0.72 0.56

c)
(Loss ) Net

3,915.09 (411.24)

d) - 0.03

e) Other Non-Operating Income
Rent - 18.22

1.54 2.08

Miscellaneous Income 1.44 2.04

TOTAL 5,481.74

24) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the 
year ended 
31.03.2012

year ended 
31.03.2011

a) 13,969.20

funds
85.39 66.24

c)
Scheme (Refer note 3 e)

21.19

d) 79.58 111.04

e) Staff Training & Recruitment 7.69

TOTAL 14,163.04 8,548.69

25) FINANCIAL COSTS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the 
year ended 
31.03.2012

year ended 
31.03.2011

a) Interest Expenses 2,938.30 1,601.20

962.36 453.46

Exchange Difference to the extent 380.60

TOTAL 4,281.26 2,054.66



45Glodyne Technoserve Limited Annual Report 2011-12

26) OTHER EXPENSES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the 
year ended 
31.03.2012

year ended 
31.03.2011

a)
Development, Contract and Service 
charges

90,680.59

Directors’ Remuneration

Salaries and allowances 196.22 211.20

Contribution to Statutory Funds 7.55 24.60

Sitting Fees 5.40

c) Communication Costs 124.81

d)
Business Promotion

51.56 101.39

e) 745.67 392.40

f) 135.77 85.43

g) Traveling and Conveyance 420.05 430.99

h) Electricity Charges 87.24 65.45

i) 967.55 938.23

Equipment Lease Rent 6,790.83 2,398.54

Insurance 18.75 8.24

l) Auditors Remuneration# (Refer 21.34

m) Postage and Courier 20.76 13.54

n) 5.27

o) Printing and Stationery 24.59 33.11

p) Rates and Taxes 82.92

q) Repairs & Maintenance

- Machines/ Equipments 20.66 18.29

- Building 0.47 1.24

- Others 1.18

r) 110.19 109.89

s) Donations 0.15 0.99

t) Vehicle Expenses 9.33 15.86

u) 306.32 144.40

v) Provision for Diminution in the value 
of Investments

-

Provision for Advances Consider 10.03 46.55

x) 13.17

y) 75.65 220.49

3.43

aa) Miscellaneous Expenses 16.10 23.82

Total 100,953.55 65,905.33

(# Foot note: 
Auditor’s Remuneration)

As Auditor

16.00 12.00

3.00 3.00

In other Capacity

Taxation Matters 0.45 2.00

1.89 0.25

Total 21.34

27) OPERATING LEASES:

facilities, equipments and residential premises for 

operating leases included in the income statements for 
the year is ̀ `

Lease Rentals.

Company (excluding certain Equipment Lease Rental 

  c) These agreements (excluding certain Equipment 
Lease Rental Agreements) provide for:

agreement

leases:
 (`

Particulars 2011-2012
` `

Not later than one 
year

921.96 921.96

Later than one 3,687.82

years
2,304.89 3,226.84

 B. Operating Leases – Income

  a) The Company has operating lease for equipments to a 

operating leases included in the income statements for 
the year is ` `

28) EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ON ACCRUAL BASIS):

 (`

Particulars 2011-2012

- 2,650.29

Technology Infrastructure 
Management Services

2,377.76

TOTAL 2,377.76 15,223.08

29) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY:
 (`

Particulars 2011-2012

Travelling Expenses 24.10 31.25

- 0.99

- 5.04

0.60

Interest On Loan 168.88

TOTAL 193.58
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30) PARTICULARS OF DIVIDEND DECLARED AND PAID TO 
NON-RESIDENTS:

(`

Particulars 2011-2012

shareholders
21

16,454 8,291

Dividend 0.69 0.35

31) MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

 (`

Particulars 2011-2012

196.22 235.06

7.55 24.60

TOTAL 203.77 259.66

32) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

 List of related parties and Relationship:

 a) Subsidiary Companies-Country of Incorporation

  iii. Glodyne Technoserve Inc. – U.S.A.

Key Management Personnel (“KMP”)

i. Chairman & 
Managing Director

ii. Executive Director

iii. Director

 c) Relatives of KMP

  iv. 

 d) 

(`

Subsidiary 
Companies

Key Management 
Personnel

Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel

 Remuneration
(259.66)

6.03 NIL
(NIL)

Warrants
NIL

(NIL)
NIL

(NIL)
NIL

(NIL) (1,080)

Loans and Advances given during the 
year (net of repayment) (13,033.21)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

Less: Provision for advances considered 10.03
(46.55)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

Deposits given NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(50)

1,633.40
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

Amount repaid on Current Account 
during the year (Net)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(14.45)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

year
3,561.06

(11,340.93)
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Subsidiary 
Companies

Key Management 
Personnel

Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel

Provision for diminution in the value of 
investment

NIL

Sale of Investment (Disposal of NIL
(0.003)

Revenue from Product & Services
(13,838.96)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

Services received 8,42.25
(621.55)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

1,14.51
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

Interest received on Loans
(900.51)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

Rent paid 1.08
(1.08)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

460.98
(460.98)

Dividend paid 1,022.89
(600.29)

41.33 8.40
(NIL)

49,625.20
(48,416.80)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

Balances

Balance Sheet date (15,151.22)

(25,065.88)
NIL
NIL

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

223.81

33)
security other than personal security of respective parties.

34)

the amount stated.

35)
Derivative transactions and hence the disclosures regarding the 

36)
Micro and Small Enterprises:

 (`

2011-2012
` `

(a) Principal amount and 
the interest due thereon 
remaining unpaid to 
suppliers

(i) Principal NIL

(ii) Interest due thereon NIL NIL

(i) The Delayed payments 
of principal amount paid 

date during the entire 
accounting year

NIL NIL

2011-2012
` `

(ii) Interest actually paid 
under section 16 of the 
Micro,Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006

NIL NIL

(c) (i) Normal Interest accrued 
during the year, for all the 
delayed payments, as per 
the agreed terms

NIL NIL

(ii)
for the period of delay in 

the agreed terms

NIL NIL

(d) (i) Total Interest accrued 
during the year

NIL NIL

(ii) Total Interest accrued 
during the year and 
remaining unpaid

NIL NIL
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37) 

 a) 

 (`

Particulars 2011-2012
(`) (`)

91.18 82.08

Employees State

1.77

  Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of 

 (`

Particulars 2011-2012
66.53 19.21

Current Service Cost 17.03 6.61
Interest Cost 6.55 2.06

6.71
(8.28) (0.14)

at the year end
88.54 66.53

  i) 
under the head “Staff Cost”

 (`

Particulars 2011-2012
Current Service Cost 17.03 6.61

Interest Cost 6.55 2.06

Expected Return on 
Plan assets

NA NA

6.71
Expense recognised 

Account

30.29

  ii) Actuarial Assumptions:

 (`

2011-2012
Particulars in 
respect of Gratuity 
(non-funded)
Discount Rate (per 
annum)

8.50% 8.25%

Expected Rate of 
Return on

Plan assets (per 
annum)

8.50% 8.25%

Salary Escalation (per 
annum)

5.00% 5.00%

38) Segment information: 

the Company has reported segment information on consolidated 

39) Earning per share (EPS)

 (`

Particulars 2011-2012

Loss Account (A)
` 25,704.84 14,416.15

Add: Amortisation of 
employee compensation 
cost (as per intrinsic Value 
Method) recognised in the 
accounts

` 21.19

Less: Amortisation of 
employee compensation 

Method) not recognised in 
the accounts

` (841.41) (416.45)

Equity share holders (B)

` 24,884.62

Weighted Average No. of 
Equity Shares Outstanding 
during the year (Before 

potential equity shares 

issued under the Scheme) 
(C)

Nos. 4,41,97,530

outstanding as on the
Nos. 22,79,293 2,259,355

potential equity shares 
outstanding during the 
year (D)

Nos. 26,54,293

Total Weighted Average 

for calculation of Diluted 
EPS (E = C+ D)

Nos. 4,68,51,823 46,228,134

Nominal Value of Equity 
Shares

` 6.00 6.00

Basic EPS As Reported ` 58.16 33.38

` 56.30 32.42

Diluted EPS As Reported ` 54.87 31.18

` 53.11 30.28
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40) Disclosures as required under Clause 32 of the listing agreement 
relating to loans and advances in the nature of loans to 

(`

Name of the Company Outstanding
Balance 

as on
March 31, 2012

Maximum
Outstanding

during the year

Glodyne Technoserve 24,513.03 24,513.03

Limited
NIL

Smaarftech 
Technologies Private 
Limited

2,629.72

42.97

Limited
38.23 38.23

Provision for Advances (38.23) (NIL)

Limited
18.35 18.35

Provision for Advances (18.35) (NIL)

 Footnote : 

     No. of 
     shares
  

41) Employee Stock Options

and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), the Company has 
elected to use the “Intrinsic Value method” to account for 

advised that there is an accounting impact of `

Compensation cost, the total accounting impact for the year 
` `

` `
 

` 1.86 (` 0.96) and ` ` 0.90) respectively.

(b) Summary of Stock Options:

 Scheme Name: ESOP 2006 

Particulars 2011-12
Number of 

options
Weighted 

Price (`)
options

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

1,078,375 105.03 1,292,912 83.18

0 0.00 60,000
108,398 35.17 141,223 65.46
167,930 64.48 133,313 35.45

0 0 0 0
802,047 122.97 105.03
382,807 139.40 412,946 110.18

Weighted Average Remaining contractual life (in years) 3.33 4.08
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the  

`)
0.00 227.59

` 10 split to face value of ` 
August 20, 2009.

 Scheme Name: ESOP 2010

Particulars 2011-12
Number of 

options
Weighted 

Price (`)
options

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

1,180,980 341.94 0 0.00

680,220 179.36 1,180,980 341.94

382,601 341.94 0 0.00

0 0.00 0 0.00

1,353 341.94 0 0.00

1,477,246 267.08 1,180,980 341.94

45,108 341.94 0 0.00

Weighted Average Remaining contractual life (in years) 5.17

`) 169.51 280.38

` 10 split to face value of ` 
August 20, 2009
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 (c) Average share price on the date of exercise of the option 
Information in respect of Options outstanding as at 
31st March 2012:

Average Share Price on 
`)

362.43
323.30
321.45

305.03
310.40
354.80

366.93

 (d)  Information in respect of Options outstanding as at 
31st March 2012:

Range of Number 
of Options 

Outstanding

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life (in years)

Weighted 
Average 

Price (`)

ESOP 2006
` 20-160 755,380 3.50 109.01

` 161-350 46,667 0.62 348.87

ESOP 2010
` 6 – 150 250,000 5.93 6.00

1,227,246 5.01 320.26

the end of the current year ended 31st March 2012

Range of Number 
of Options 

Outstanding

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life (in 
years)

Weighted 
Average 

Price (`)

ESOP 2006
` 20-160 1,031,708 4.19 94.00

` 161-350 46,667 1.62 348.87

ESOP 2010
` 340 – 350 1,180,980 5.79 341.94

 (e)  The fair value of option granted on 20th  
6th th th  
29th th st  
28th th th th August 
2011 and March 06, 2012 are ` 12.26, `  11.42, ` 12.84, 
` 33.92, ̀ ` 45.50, ̀ ` 85.65, ̀  133.90 & ̀   149.80, 
` 168.23, ` 134.06 and ` 230.50 per share respectively.

Variables 30-Aug-11 06-Mar-12
8.30% 8.29%

2.  Expected Life 3.50 3.50
3.  Expected Volatility 61.14% 58.03%
4.  Dividend Yield 1.03% 1.03%
5.  Price of the underlying share 

option grant.(`)

280.1 243.6

42) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS NOT 
PROVIDED FOR:

(`

Particulars 2011-2012
a)  Unexpired Letters of Credit 1,730.62 322.10

Companies Counter 
Guarantee

1,556.47

c) Capital Commitments in 

Progress (net of advances 
paid)

304.00 240.00

the company in respect 
49,625.20 48,416.80

e)  Claims against 
the company not 

84.54 84.54

under share purchase 
agreement (SPA) in 
respect of acquistion 
of Comat Technologies 
Private Limited.

832.98

TOTAL 54,133.81 49,584.41

43)  Till previous period ending on 31st

the year ending 31st March 2012, the revised Schedule VI as 

As per our report of even date
For N M Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner

Date: 25th May 2012

(Except as to Note 4(e) referred to in para 4 of 

For and behalf of the Board

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & 

Managing Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Director

R. S. P. Sinha
Director

Bryan Sanderson
Director

Dr. Mohan Kaul
Director

Samar Ray
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Shantanu Rooj

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary Date: 25th May 2012

(E
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE LIMITED ON CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE LIMITED 
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1. We have examined the attached consolidated Balance Sheet of 
GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE LIMITED (“the Company”) and its 
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Glodyne Group”) as 

and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year 
ended on that date.

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
in India. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 

statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance 

of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 

presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.

viz. Glodyne Peoplepower Limited, Smaarftech Technologies 

considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements are unaudited 

Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in 
respect of these Subsidiaries, is based solely on the Management 

respect of these two subsidiaries are as follows:

(` in Lakhs)

Sr.
No.

Name of the 
Subsidiaries

Total 
Assets

Total 
Revenue

Net Cash 

1 Decision One 27,712.22 90,244.19 (213.47)

2
Software Pte Ltd 

2.84 NIL (0.16)

5. Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 4(e) to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements relating to the revision in 

the amount of Dividend for the F.Y. 2011-12 as originally proposed 
by the Board of Directors (“the Board”) in its meeting held on 25th 
May 2012 and its subsequent revision in the Board meeting held 
on 6th December 2012. As a result of such revision in the proposed 
dividend and consequent impact on provision for tax on proposed 
dividend, the amount of Short Term Provisions has decreased 
by ` 23,30,00,879/- with a corresponding increase in the amount 

subsequent to the issue of our audit report dated 25th May 2012, 
based on Standard on Auditing (SA)-560 (Revised) on “Subsequent 
Events” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI), we have carried out audit procedures necessary in these 
circumstances and restricted them only to the amendment in the 

requirements of the Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated 

Standards) Rules, 2006.

7. Based on our audit and on consideration of report of another auditor 

on the component, to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, read with our comments in paragraphs 
4 and 5 above, we are of the opinion that the attached consolidated 

accounting principles generally accepted in India:

 (a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state 
of affairs of the Glodyne Group as at March 31, 2012;

date; and

 (c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the 

date.

For N M Kapadia & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 107072W

Sd/-
Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No. 033697
Mumbai: 25th May 2012
(except as to Note 4(e) referred to in para 4 of our report, which is as 
of 6th December 2012)

Consolidated Auditors’ Report 
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(` in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS NOTE  As at 
31.03.2012 

 As at
 31.03.2011 

I.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

 Shareholders’ Funds

  (a) Share Capital 3  2,699.59  2,629.52 

3 e.  21.19 -

  (c)  Reserves and Surplus 4  76,229.56  52,254.97 

  (d)  Money received against share warrants 5  1,500.00  1,080.00 

  (e) Share application money pending allotment 6  25.21  4.08 

 Minority Interest  606.98  316.60 

 Non-Current Liabilities

  (a)  Long-term borrowings 7  43,630.62  45,564.04 

  (b)  Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 8  1,064.26  1,687.78 

  (c)  Other Long term liabilities  2,456.13  1,876.83 

  (d)  Long-term provisions 9  4,068.29  105.84 

 Current Liabilities

  (a)  Short-term borrowings 10 23,418.85  13,285.24 

  (b)  Trade payables 11  9,862.53  6,145.15 

  (c)  Other current liabilities 12 36,180.05  17,935.05 

  (d)  Short-term provisions 13  14,574.47  5,097.53 

        TOTAL  216,337.70  147,982.63 

II. ASSETS

 Non-Current Assets

  (a)  Fixed assets 14

   (i)  Tangible assets 14.1  30,980.96  12,841.26 

   (ii)  Intangible assets 14.2  10,763.39  12,975.87 

 657.98  403.88 

   (iv)  Intangible Asset under development  -  145.84 

  (b)  Goodwill (on Consolidation) 15  54,435.69 47,526.44

  (c)  Non-Current investments 16  0.01 3.63

  (d)  Trade Receivables 17  616.47 130.05

  (e)  Long term loans and advances 18  13,483.53 6,881.64

 Current Assets

  (a)  Inventories 19  5,129.83  4,030.89 

  (b)  Trade receivables 17  52,720.69  37,427.65 

20  3,854.11  5,163.73 

  (d)  Short-term loans and advances 21  39,585.74  18,482.92 

  (e)  Other current assets 22  4,109.30  1,968.83 

        TOTAL  216,337.70  147,982.63 

III. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1-40

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2012

As per our report of even date
For N M Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2012

(Except as to Note 4(e) referred to in para 4 of 
our report, which is as of 6th December 2012)

For and behalf of the Board

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & 

Managing Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Director

R. S. P. Sinha
Director

Bryan Sanderson
Director

Dr. Mohan Kaul
Director

Samar Ray
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2012

(Except as to Note 4(e) and consequent amendments, which is as of 6th December 2012)
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(` in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS NOTE  For the year 
ended 31.03.2012 

 For the year 
ended 31.03.2011 

I. Revenue from operations 23  265,256.46  175,052.27 

II. Other Income (Net) 24  4,170.80  93.52 

.          TOTAL  269,427.26  175,145.79 

III. Expenses:

25  66,982.35  46,570.93 

(b) Finance costs 26  7,442.63  3,248.54 

(c) Depreciation and amortization expense 14  8,534.27  5,174.41 

(d) Other expenses 27  152,213.70  96,856.84 

         TOTAL  235,172.95  151,850.72 

IV. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  34,254.31  23,295.07 

V. Prior Period Adjustment 28  (1,092.14)  - 

VI. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 33,162.17 23,295.07

VII. Tax expense:

(a)  Current tax  (14,197.23)  (5,205.00)

(b)  Excess / (Short) Provision for earlier Years  520.20  (0.02)

(c)  Deferred tax  623.52  (570.80)

TOTAL (13,053.51) (5,775.82)

VIII. PROFIT AFTER TAX BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST  20,108.66  17,519.25 

IX. Minority Interest  (289.95)  (107.70)

X. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  19,818.71  17,411.55 

XI. Earning per equity share:

(a)  Basic 36  44.84  40.32 

(b)  Diluted  40.55  36.76 

XII. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1-40

As per our report of even date
For N M Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2012

(Except as to Note 4(e) referred to in para 4 of 
our report, which is as of 6th December 2012)

For and behalf of the Board

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & 

Managing Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Director

R. S. P. Sinha
Director

Bryan Sanderson
Director

Dr. Mohan Kaul
Director

Samar Ray
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2012

(Except as to Note 4(e) and consequent amendments, which is as of 6th December 2012)
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2012 Year ended 31.03.2011
 33,162.18  23,295.77 

I. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Adjustment for :
Depreciation /Amortisation  8,534.27  5,174.41 
Interest and other Finance Charges  7,442.63  3,248.55 
Interest received  (359.05)  (245.34)
Rent received  (0.72)  (18.64)
Dividend received  (0.72)  (0.56)

 (0.24)  (1.41)
Loss on sale of Fixed Asset  5.27  - 

 -  (5.23)
 21.19 

Bad Debts Written - off and Provision for Doublful Debts  421.72  524.66 
 (8,866.88)  102.70 

 (1.84)  (2.08)
 7,195.62  8,777.06 

 40,357.80  32,072.83 
Adjustment for :

 (266.55)  (4,547.99)
 (3,011.74)  (77.71)

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade & Other Receivables  (42,104.22)  (39,481.74)
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade & Other Payables  7,720.11  (37,662.41)  20,136.37  (23,971.07)
Cash generated from operations  2,695.39  8,101.76 
Taxes paid  (2,328.47)  (4,600.81)

366.92  3,500.95 
II. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Interest received  359.05  245.34 
(Increase) / Decrease in Investments  3.62  - 
Dividend received  0.72  0.56 
Rent Received  0.72  18.64 

 1,327.77  (3,672.69)
(restricted cash))
Expenses on Amalgamation  -  (126.34)
Increase in Goodwill on Consolidation  -  (44,159.09)

 (23,875.99)  (16,216.30)
Sale Proceeds of Fixed assets  30.95  10.92 
Net Cash from Investment Activities  (22,153.17)  (63,898.96)

III. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares (including Securities Premium)  3,344.21  10,438.61 
Increase in Share Application monies  25.21  4.08 
Proceeds from Issue of Convertible Warrants  1,500.00  1,080.00 
Increase in Capital Reserve  -  108.53 
Proceeds / (Repayment) of borrowings 26,403.66  50,418.49 
Interest and other Finance Charges  (7,442.63)  (3,248.55)
Dividend paid (including Dividend Tax)  (2,026.06)  (1,104.02)
Net Cash from from Financing Activities 21,804.40  57,697.13 

18.14  (2,700.88)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  889.28  3,590.15 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 907.42  889.28 

2,946.69  4,274.46 
Cash and Bank Balances at the end of year (as per Note 20) 3,854.11  5,163.73 

IV. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (1-40)
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For N M Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2012
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our report, which is as of 6th December 2012)
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Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & 

Managing Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
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Director

Bryan Sanderson
Director

Dr. Mohan Kaul
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Samar Ray
Director

Alok Sharma
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Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
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(Except as to Note 4(e) and consequent amendments, which is as of 6th December 2012)
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1) COMPANY OVERVIEW:

Glodyne Technoserve Limited (‘the Company”) together with its 
subsidiaries (collectively, referred to as the group) is engaged in 
Technology Infrastructure Management Services and Application 

Large Scale Technology Projects, Technology Maintenance and 
Management in India and Overseas. The Company has head quarters 
at Mumbai, India.

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

i. Basis of Accounting

Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (IGAAP) under 
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis. The IGAAP 

Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 by the Central Government of 
India under Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956, various 
pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 
and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI).

 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where 
a newly issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in 
the accounting policy hitherto in use. The Management evaluates 
all recently issued or revised Accounting Standards on an 
ongoing basis.

has become applicable to the Company, for preparation and 

Schedule VI does not impact the recognition and measurement 

iii. Use of estimates

that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues 
and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the 

assets, taxes, provision for doubtful debts, anticipated obligations 
under employee retirement plans etc. The recognition, 

on these estimates to a greater extent. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates.

iv. Principles of Consolidation

its subsidiaries, which are more than 50% owned or controlled. 

following basis:

are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the 

expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and 

losses in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) - 21 
“Consolidated Financial Statements”.

 b) In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign 
operations, revenue items are consolidated at the average 
rate prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are 
converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any 
exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised 
in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve.

 c) The difference between the cost of investment in the 
subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of acquisition 

statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may 
be.

 d) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of 
investment in subsidiary and the carrying amount of its 
assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised 

the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income 
attributable to shareholders of the company.

balance sheet separate from liabilities and equity of the 

transactions and other events in similar circumstances 

 h) Notes on these Consolidated Financial Statements are 
intended to serve as a means of informative disclosure and 
a guide to better understanding of the consolidated position 
of the group. Recognising this purpose, the company has 

statements, which fairly present the needed disclosures.

 i) The list of subsidiaries considered in these consolidated 

below:

Name of Subsidiaries Country of 
Incorporation

Proportion of 
O

Interest

Glodyne Peoplepower Ltd. India 60%

Glodyne Technoserve Inc. 100%

Smaarftech Technologies Pvt. 
Ltd.

India 99.95%

100%

Europe 100%

Limited
Singapore 100%

Glodyne Technoserve (East) 

Glodyne Technoserve Inc.-

100%
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Name of Subsidiaries Country of 
Incorporation

Proportion of 
O

Interest

100%

DecisionOne Corporation 
(Subsidiary of Glodyne 

100%

 Goodwill arising on consolidation / acquisition of assets is not 
amortised. The same is tested for impairment on a periodic basis 
and written off, if found impaired.

vi. Revenue Recognition

 Revenues are recorded net off all the applicable taxes.

 The Direct revenue of the group comprises the income from 

 i. Technology Infrastructure Management Services - This 
represents Technology Integration and Management 
Services. Technology Integration activities include 

technology deployment, resales and Integration of Hardware / 

with or without one another. Revenue from Technology 
Integration is recognised on delivery to the customer and 

the individual contracts. Management Services represents 
amount charged for Facility Management Services, 

Management Services is recognised over the life of the 
contracts. Maintenance revenue on expired contracts on 
which services have continued to be rendered is recognised 
on renewal of contract or on receipt of payment.

 ii. Software Services - This represents charges for development 
of software for customer and sale of licenses of software 
and other products. Revenue from Software services is 
recognised when the software is developed and installed / 
delivered to the customers as per the terms of the contract. 
Revenue on sale of licenses of software and other products 
is recognised on delivery / installation, as the case may be.

 iii. Revenue from E- Governance Project : Revenue from 

guaranteed revenue against setting up of the system which 
includes installation of hardware, development of software, 
capacity building, maintenance and operation of the 
system as the case may be and variable revenue against 
rendering of services or from distribution of Smart Cards 

recognized after achieving the milestones deliverable on 
lapse of time, in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of the agreement and variable revenue is based on 
achievement of milestones as prescribed in the agreement 
with the respective Government(s).

  Recognition norms for Indirect Revenue:

  i. Interest Income- Interest Income is recognised based 
on time proportion and on gross basis.

  ii. Dividend Income- Dividend Income is recognised 

established.

  iii. Rental Income- Rent on immovable properties is 
recognized on accrual basis as per the respective 
agreements with the parties.

 Expenses are accounted on the accrual basis and provisions are 

depreciation. For this purpose cost includes purchase price 
and all other attributable costs of bringing the assets to 

 ii. Intangible assets are stated at the consideration paid for 
purchase/ acquisition less accumulated amortization.

assets / Intangible Assets and cost of assets not ready for 
intended use before the balance sheet date.

 iv. Depreciation on all assets is provided pro-rata to the period 
of use, under straight-line method, at rates prescribed in 
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. Intangible assets 
including Technical Know how are amortised over their 
respective individual estimated useful lives (not exceeding 

date the asset is available for its intended use. Leasehold 
land is amortised over the life of the lease.

provided pro-rata to the period of use, under Straight-line 

 a) It is expected to be realized in or is intended for sale or 

 b) It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the 
reporting date;

 c) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting date.

criteria:

cycle;

 b) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting 
date;

 c) The company does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date.
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capitalized as a part of the cost of asset up to the date the asset 
is put to use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement 

 Trade Investments are the investments made to enhance the 

intention at the time of purchase. Investments that are readily 
realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are 

are stated at Cost. A provision for diminution in value is made 
to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of long 
term investments. Current Investments, if any, are valued at 
lower of cost and net realizable value.

and softwares in respect of Technology Infrastructure 
Management Services of the group and the same is valued at 
lower of cost (net of provision for obsolescence) or net realizable 
value. Cost is determined on First In First Out (FIFO) basis.

service project for which the services are yet to be performed / 
billed.

 Transactions in foreign currencies are generally recorded at the 
exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary 
items denominated in foreign currency and outstanding at the 
Balance Sheet date are translated at the exchange rate ruling on 
that date. Exchange differences on foreign exchange transactions 

 (a) 

during which the services are rendered. Provision for unused 
entitlements in respect of compensated absences is made 
for on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of 

 (b) 

Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 all eligible 

employees of the Company are entitled to receive 

addition, some employees of the Company are 

Contribution Plan. Both these Plans are recognised 
and administered by the Statutory Authorities. Both 

contributions to these schemes are recognised as 

the period in which the employee renders the related 
service. The Company has no further obligation under 
these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

  (ii) 

   The Company provides for Gratuity in accordance with 

Plan. The plan, subject to the provisions of the above Act, 
provides for lump sum payment to eligible employees 
at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of 
employment, of an amount based on the respective 

liability is accrued and provided for on the basis of an 

/ losses are recognised immediately to the Statement 

  (iii) Subsidiaries

foreign subsidiary in accordance with the local laws 
and regulations prevailing in the Country in which the 
subsidiary is located.

 Tax expense comprises of Current and Deferred tax. Provision 
for Current tax is made in accordance with the relevant provisions 
of the Income - tax Act, 1961.

been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only 
if there is a virtual/ reasonable certainty that the assets will be 
realised in future.

 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance 

internal/external factors. Impairment Loss is recognised whenever 
the carrying amount of an asset is in excess of its recoverable 
amount. The Impairment Loss is recognised as an expense in the 

reduced to its recoverable value.

xviii. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

 The group recognises a provision when there is a present 
obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires 

when there is an obligation that may, but probably will not (in 
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Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the 

xix. Unbilled Revenue

statements but not billed to the customers as per the contractual 
terms for billing.

xx. Earning per Share (EPS)

computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year duly adjusted for additional shares 
issued during the year, if any.

 The number of shares used in computing diluted EPS comprises 
the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic EPS, and also the weighted average number of 
equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of 
all dilutive potential equity shares.

 Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be converted 
as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. 
The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are 

xxi. Receivables

of amount due on account of services rendered in the normal 
course of the business. Trade Receivables are stated at the 
amounts they are estimated to realize, net of provisions for bad 
and doubtful debts. A provision for doubtful debt is made when 
collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are 

xxii. Cash and Cash equivalents

 Cash and Cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises cash 

maturity of three months or less.

xxiii. 

 Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby 

non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 

xxiv. Liabilities

amounts the Company is bound to settle.

xxv. Trade Payables

amount due on account of services received in the normal course 
of business.

xxvi. Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

 All material events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are 
considered and where appropriate, adjustments to or disclosures 

3) SHARE CAPITAL:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2012 As at 31.03.2011

Number of 
Shares

 Amount Number of 
Shares

  Amount   

Authorised

Equity Shares of ` 6/- (`6/-) 
each  90,000,000  5,400.00  90,000,000  5,400.00 

Preference Shares of ` 6/- 
(` 6/-) each  8,500,000  510.00  8,500,000  510.00 

TOTAL  98,500,000  5,910.00  98,500,000  5,910.00 

Issued, subscribed & fully 
paid up

Equity Shares of `6/- (`6/-) 
each  44,993,210  2,699.59  43,825,280  2,629.52 

TOTAL  44,993,210  2,699.59  43,825,280  2,629.52

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning 
and at the end of the reporting period

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2012 31st March, 2011

Equity Shares Number  Amount  Number  Amount  

Outstanding at the 
beginning of the year 43,825,280  2,629.52 37,522,120  2,251.33 

Add: Issued during 
the year  1,167,930  70.08  6,303,160  378.19 

Outstanding at the 
end of the year

44,993,210  2,699.59 43,825,280  2,629.52

 (i) The company has only one class of equity shares having a 
par value of ` 6/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and 
pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed 
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

  In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of 
Equity Shares will be entitled to receive the remaining 
shares of the company, after distribution of all Preferential 
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number 
of Equity Shares held by the Shareholders.

 (ii) The authorised capital of the company also comprises 
85,00,000 number of preference shares of ` 6/- each. 
However the company has not issued the same for 
subscription.

Particulars  31st March, 2012  31st March, 2011 

No. of shares  NIL  NIL

d. Shares reserved for issue under options:

employees of its subsidiary companies. As on 31st March, 
2012 number of options were outstanding 22,79,293 (22,59,355 
shares). Each option gets converted into 1 equity share. For 
further details refer to note no 37.
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e.  During the year, the Company has granted 6,80,220 (12,40,980) 
options. The Company follows intrinsic value method to account 
for Employee compensation costs in respect of grant of options. 
The employee compensation cost equals to the difference 

as on the day before the date of grant and the exercise price. As 

year amounted to ` 21,18,644/- (` NIL) and the same has been 

f. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, share issued 
for consideration other than cash and shares bought back 
during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the 
reporting date:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 
2012 (Nos)

31st March, 
2011 (Nos)

Equity shares allotted as 
fully paid bonus shares 
by way of capitalization of 
general reserve , balance in 

securities premium account

 24,323,910  24,323,910

g. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the 
Company:

(` in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
shareholders

31st March, 2012 31st March, 2011

Number % holding in 
the shares

Number % holding in 
the shares

Equity shares of 
`6/- each fully 
paid up

1  15,235,210 33.86%  15,135,210 34.54%

2 Divvyani A.  9,164,543 20.37%  8,984,543 20.50%

4) RESERVES AND SURPLUS:

(` in Lakhs)

 As at 
31-3-2012 

 As at
31-3-2011 

(A) Capital Reserve 

statements 
 943.30  961.11 

Add:-Addition during the year  -  108.53 

Less :Expenditure incurred on 
Amalgamation 

 -  (126.34)

Closing Balance  943.30  943.30 

(B)  Securities Premium Account 

statements 
 14,794.10  2,054.38 

Add: Received on Issue of 
Shares 

 4,358.21  12,739.71 

(Refer footnote *)  -  - 

Closing Balance  19,152.31  14,794.10 

(` in Lakhs)

 As at 
31-3-2012 

 As at
31-3-2011 

(C) Foreign Currency Translation 
Reserve (arising on 
Consolidation)

statements 
 (496.28)  (169.93)

Less:- Adjustment for the 
Current Financial Year 

 (123.75)  (326.35)

Closing Balance  (620.03)  (496.28)

(D) General Reserve 

statement
 4,258.47  2,816.86 

Add: Amount transferred 
from surplus balance in the 

 -  1,441.62 

Closing Balance  4,258.47  4,258.47 

(E) Surplus in the statement of 

statements
 32,755.38  18,930.69 

 19,818.71  17,411.55 

Less:- Appropriations

Transfer to General Reserve  -  (1,441.62)

Proposed Dividend (Amount per 

`  4.20) [refer note 4(e) below] 

 (67.62)  (1,845.80)

Tax on Proposed Dividend  (10.97)  (299.44)

Net Surplus in the statement of  52,495.51  32,755.38 

       (Refer footnote 4E **)  TOTAL
         

 76,229.56  52,254.97 

*Footnote:

During the year, `
Premium Account on account of conversion of 10,00,000 
convertible warrants issued at a premium of ̀  426/- into equivalent 
number of Equity Shares. Further, ` ` 10,338.38 

shares under ESOP scheme / preferential allotment.

**Footnote 4E:

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 
May 25, 2012, had approved recommendation of a Final Dividend 
of `
which was subject to approval from the Term Lenders. However, 
subsequently, considering the overall need of liquidity for the 

Lenders, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on December 
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6, 2012, reviewed and revised the recommendation of Dividend 
to ` 0.15 per share. The Board accordingly also approved the 
changes in the Final Accounts approved in the earlier meeting 
and adopted the revised Financial statements, giving effect to 
the new dividend recommendation. As a result of such revision, 
the provision for proposed dividend has reduced by `  2004.74 

`

corresponding amounts. Further, an amount of `
which was transferred to the General Reserve (as required by 

opnion of the Management, no transfer is requried considering 
the revision in the proposed dividend. As a result, the Surplus 

amount and a corresponding decrease in the balance of General 
Reserve. 

5) MONEY RECEIVED AGAINST ISSUED OF SHARE WARRANTS: 

During the year company has issued 15,00,000 convertible 
warrants at ` 400/- per warrants on 31st October, 2011. Each 
warrants carry a right to subscribe to 1 equity shares of the 
company at a premium of ` 394/- at any time within a period of 
18 months from the date of allotment of the said warrant. As on 
the date of Balance sheet, the company has received ` 1500.00 

6) SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTMENT:

The same represents the amount received on towards exercise of 

equity shares in respect of of which allotment is pending as on 
balance sheet date. The total nominal value of the shares is 
` `
in the above is ` `
the said application monies were alloted on 30th April 2012.

7) LONG TERM BORROWINGS:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Secured

a) Term Loan from Banks

(i) Rupee loans  11,856.64  3,740.06 

 Less:- Current Maturities  4,567.91  151.12 

Total (i)  7,288.73  3,588.94 

(ii)  Foreign Currency loans  49,245.75  42,773.06 

 Less:- Current Maturities  12,955.87  1,113.41 

Total (ii)  36,289.88  41,659.64 

Total (a) (i+ii) 43,578.61 45,248.58

b) Vehicle Loan from Banks  140.86  389.41 

 Less: Current Maturities  88.84  73.95 

Total (b)  52.01  315.46 

TOTAL (a+b)  43,630.62  45,564.04 

7

term Borrowings and the Current Maturities of the Long term 

7.2) Details of Securities and Terms of Repayment 

 a) ICICI Bank: 

  Outstanding Loan as on 31 st March 2012 is ` 4700.00 

  The loan is guaranteed by the promoters of the company 
and the promoter Group Company. The loan is repayable 
in 18 monthly installments including moratarium period of 

  The period of maturity w.r.t balance sheet date is 1 year and 
4 months. 

 b) Ratnakar Bank Limited: 

  Outstanding Loan as on 31 st March 2012 is ` 3320.75 

Company. Second pari passu charge by way of registered 
mortgage on the certain immovable property of Pune and 
personal guarantee of the promoters of the company. 

  The loan is repayable in 36 months installments including 

on the said Loan. The period of maturity w.r.t balance sheet 
date is 2 years and 11 months. 

 c) Corporation Bank: 

  Outstanding Loan as on 31 st March 2012 is ̀
Secured by exclusive charge on the machinery purchased. 
The loan is repayable in 19 monthly installments of ` 45.45 

period of maturity w.r.t balance sheet date is 1 year and  
2 months . 

 d) DBS Bank: 

  Outstanding Loan as on 31st March 2012 is `

purchased out of loan funds and pari passu charge on all the 
movable Fixed assets of the Company. The loan is repayable 
20 quarterly installments including moratarium period of 

plus spread of 240 basis points. The period of maturity w.r.t 
balance sheet date is 4 years and 2 quarters.

 e) Terms Lenders at US including lead Bank - ICICI Bank: ( 
Glodyne Technoserve Inc)

current assets of the DecisionOne Corporation, Glodyne 
Technoserve Inc and its subsidiaries.  

  The loan is guaranteed by the Indian parent Company. 
The loan is repayable in 18 monthly installments including 

on the said Loan. The period of maturity w.r.t balance sheet 
date for tranche of 28 million is 1 year and 3months and for 
tranche if $ 60 million is 3 years and 3 months.
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  Secured by First charge on by way of registered mortgage 
on the certain immovable property at Pune and charge on 

assets of the Glodyne peoplepower Limited. 

  The loan is repayable in 48 months installments including 

on the said Loan. The period of maturity w.r.t balance sheet 
date is 3 years.

 g) Vehicle Loans are secured against hypothecation of 
respective vehicles. 

8) 
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Deferred Tax Liability on account of 
Depreciation 

 5,842.45  2,235.96 

Deferred Tax Asset on account of 
Deferrals / Disallowances 

 (4,778.19)  (548.18)

 1,064.26  1,687.78 

9) LONG-TERM PROVISIONS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

 4,068.29  105.84 

TOTAL  4,068.29  105.84 

10) SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS: 
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

a) Secured

 Loans Repayable on Demand  - 

Footnote No. 10.1) 

 19,746.68  13,285.24 

Total (a)  19,746.68  13,285.24 

b) Unsecured Loans

 2,500.00 -

Loans from others 1,172.16  - 

Total (b) 3,672.16 -

TOTAL (a+b) 23,418.85  13,285.24 

Foot Note 10.1

assets of the Company. The facility is also secured by way of personal 
guarantees of certain Directors and pledge of certain Shares of the 

` 
(`

11) TRADE PAYABLES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Sundry Creditors

Due to Micro & Small Enterprises  -  2.73 

Others  9,862.53  6,142.42 

TOTAL  9,862.53  6,145.15 

12) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Current maturities of long term 

 (i) Rupee Loans  4,577.03  151.12 

 (ii) Foreign Currency loans  12,955.87  1,113.41 

 79.72  73.95 

c) Interest Accured But Not Due  25.42 0.12

d) Income received in advance  49.42  1,019.09 

 5.14  2.71 

(There are no amount due and 
outstanding to be credited to Investor 
Education & Protection Fund)

Total (I)  17,692.60 2,360.40

f) Statutory dues payable  2,085.24  774.10 

g) Sundry Creditors for Expenses/
Other Payables 

 9,550.62  5,452.58 

h) Advance From Customers 6,850.76  9,320.50 

i) Other Deposits  0.83  27.46 

Total (II) 18,487.45  15,574.64 

Total (I+II) 36,180.05  17,935.05 

13) SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

 78.67  0.40 

Other Provisions:

Proposed Dividend  67.62  1,845.18 

Dividend Tax  310.41  482.75 

Provision for income tax (net of 
relative payments, if any) 

 14,117.77  2,769.20 

TOTAL  14,574.47  5,097.53 
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14) FIXED ASSETS:
(` in Lakhs)

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

Particulars Balance as 
at 1st April, 

2011

Additions 
during the 

Year

Deductions 
During the 

Year

Adjustments Balance 
as at ‘31 

March, 
2012

Balance as 
at 1st April, 

2011

Depreciation 
charge for 

the Year

Depreciation 
on 

Deductions

Adjustments Balance 
as at ‘31 

March, 
2012

Balance 
as at ‘31 

March, 
2012

Balance as 
at 31 March, 

2011

14.1 Tangible Assets

Lease Hold Land  112.59  -  -  112.59  6.22  1.19  -  7.41  105.18  106.36 

Lease Hold Premises  48.65  -  -  48.65  8.72  0.79  -  9.52  39.13  39.92 

Leasehold Improvments  452.26  78.29  (23.22) 36.73  544.06  308.58  103.19  - 23.82  435.59  108.47  143.68 

 852.74  -  -  852.74  99.47  12.55  -  112.02  740.72  753.27 

 987.01  74.01  - 84.46  1,145.48  569.93  84.35  - 67.49  721.76  423.72  417.09 

Plant and Machinery  205.30  40.09  - 29.72  275.10  170.54  32.98  - 24.81  228.33  46.78  34.76 

Elecrical Installation  161.85  -  -  161.85  43.54  7.69  -  51.23  110.62  118.31 

Furniture & Fixture  1,100.30  40.39  - 68.22  1,208.91  606.88  69.85  - 55.74  732.47  476.44  493.42 

Motor Vehicles  824.83  109.66  (33.97) 61.53  962.05  256.41  153.34  (17.72) 24.16  416.19  545.86  568.43 

Computer Systems  14,540.60  22,299.56  (0.64) 226.80  37,066.32  4,374.60  4,123.14  (9.40) 193.95  8,682.28  28,384.04  10,166.01 

 1.33  -  -  1.33  1.33  -  -  1.33  -  - 

TOTAL  19,287.47  22,641.99  (57.83) 507.45  42,379.08  6,446.22  4,589.06  (27.12) 389.96  11,398.12  30,980.96  12,841.26 

14.2 Intangible Assets

Patents & Copyrights  558.56  -  -  558.56  486.49  72.07  -  558.56  -  72.07 

Softwares  16,805.01  1,125.75  - 1555.43  19,486.18  8,393.77  2,538.48  - 1,007.51  11,939.76  7,546.42  8,411.24 

Technical Know How  2,231.52  -  -  2,231.52  892.61  446.30  -  1,338.91  892.61  1,338.91 

Goodwill  6,314.08  -  - 920.60  7,234.68  3,160.43  1,291.07  - 458.81  4,910.31  2,324.37  3,153.65 

TOTAL  25,909.16  1,125.75  - 2476.02  29,510.94  12,933.29  4,347.93  - 1,466.32  18,747.54  10,763.39  12,975.87 

Grand Total  45,196.64  23,767.74  (57.83) 2983.47  71,890.02  19,379.51  8,936.99  (27.12) 1,856.28  30,145.66  41,744.35  25,817.13 

PREVIOUS YEAR  17,455.91  28,003.60  (111.18) (253.12)  45,196.64  4,925.36  5,389.11  (3.66) (94.75)  19,379.51  25,817.13 - 

15) GOODWILL (ON CONSOLIDATION):

Goodwill on Consolidation comprises Goodwill arising from the 
following subsidiaries:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Glodyne People Power Limited  138.07  138.07 
Glodyne Technoserve Inc  54,297.62  47,388.36 

TOTAL  54,435.69  47,526.44 

16) NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Trade Investment (Value at cost, 

Investment in Equity instruments 
(Unquoted fully paid up)
Investment in subsidiaries
Others
Trade Investments (Unqouted - 
Fully Paid Up) 
100 (2,600) Equity Shares of 

[Face Value per share: ` 10/- (` 10/-) 
each]

 0.01  0.26 

NIL (16,845) Shares of Cosmos  

[Face Value per share: ` 20/- (`  20/) 
each]

 -  3.37 

TOTAL  0.01  3.63 

17) TRADE RECEIVABLES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Non Current 

- Considered Good  616.47  130.05 

Total  616.47  130.05 

Current 

a) Others

 33,958.28  26,051.29 

Total (a)  33,958.28  26,051.29 

Over six months from the date they 
are due for payment 

 18,762.41  12,132.75 

 296.14  220.49 

Total (b)  19,058.55  12,353.24 

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  (c)  (296.14)  (976.88)

TOTAL (a+b-c)  52,720.69  37,427.65 
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18) LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

a. Security Deposits 
 1,600.61  707.87 

Total (a)  1,600.61  707.62 
b. Other loans and advances
 Unsecured, considered good 
 Advance to Suppliers 11,584.12  5,986.97 
 Prepaid Expenses  298.80  186.80 

Total (b) 11,882.92  6,173.76 
TOTAL (a+b)  13,483.53  6,881.64 

19) INVENTORIES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

Computer Equipments, Peripherals 
and Softwares 

 5,129.83  4,030.89 

TOTAL  5,129.83  4,030.89 

20) CASH AND BANK BALANCES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

i) Cash and cash equivalents

On current accounts  815.16  587.24 
Fixed Deposit with original 
maturity of less than three 
months 

 85.28  258.97 

Currency Account 
 -  11.60 

 b) Cash on hand  6.98  31.46 
ii) Other Bank Balances
 a) Dividend Accounts  5.14  2.71 
 b) Deposit with Original 

Maturity for more than 3 
months 

 2,148.69  696.37 

 c) Margin Money Deposit  402.85  3,575.38 
 d) Balance in Debt Service 

Reserve account 
 390.00  - 

TOTAL  3,854.11  5,163.73 

21) SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

(a) Security Deposit

 594.05  532.19 

(b)  Other Loan Advabce

 Advance to Suppliers  36,320.46  14,060.66 

 Advance to others  846.08  2,179.95 

 Advance to Employees  110.71  222.67 

Other

 Prepaid Expenses  1,714.44  1,487.46 

TOTAL  39,585.74  18,482.92 

22) OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at         
31.03.2012 

 As at       
31.03.2011 

 3,089.45  77.71 

 972.72  1,805.11 

 47.13  86.02 

TOTAL  4,109.30  1,968.83 

23) REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS:
(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the 
year ended
31.03.2012 

For the
year ended       
31.03.2011 

Sales of services 

Technology IMS  264,674.12  170,958.05 

Software Services  582.35  4,094.22 

TOTAL  265,256.46  175,052.27 

24) OTHER INCOME (NET):
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the 
year ended
31.03.2012 

For the
year ended       
31.03.2011 

a)  Interest Income 

 Interest on Loans and 
Advances 

 147.46  83.16 

 Interest on Income Tax Refund  4.19  13.87 

 207.39  148.31 

b)  Dividend Income  0.72  0.56 

c)  Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 
Gain / (Loss ) Net 

 3,805.52  (182.92)

(net) 
 0.24  1.41 

 -  5.23 

f) Other Non-Operating Income

 Rent  0.72  18.64 

(net) 
 1.84  2.88 

  Miscellaneous Income  2.71  2.39 

TOTAL  4,170.80  93.52 

25) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the 
year ended
31.03.2012 

For the
year ended       
31.03.2011 

Salaries and wages  57,097.91  40,817.82 

Contribution to provident and other 
funds 

 5,802.11  3,058.58 

Scheme (Refer note 3e) 
 21.19  - 

Staff welfare expenses  4,053.03  2,664.43 

Staff Training & Recruitment  8.11  30.09 

TOTAL  66,982.35  46,570.93 
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26) FINANCE COST:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the 
year ended
31.03.2012 

For the
year ended       
31.03.2011 

a) Interest Expenses  6,056.49  2,705.91 

b) 

Processing Fees 
 1,005.54  542.64 

Exchange Difference to the 
extent considered as on 
adjustment to borrowing costs 

 380.60  - 

TOTAL  7,442.63  3,248.55 

27) OTHER EXPENSES:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the 
year ended
31.03.2012 

For the
year ended       
31.03.2011 

a) Material Cost, Software 
Development,Contract & 
Service Charges 

 125,116.95  79,472.18 

b) Directors’ Remuneration 

 Salaries and allowances  196.22  211.20 

 Contribution to Statutory Funds  7.55  24.60 

 Sitting Fees  5.40  2.67 

c) Advertisement, Publicity and 
Business Promotion 

 89.92  143.64 

d) Auditors Remuneration#  
(Refer footnote below) 

 41.31  32.76 

e) Rates and Taxes  509.91  336.91 

f) Traveling and Conveyance 5,658.15  3,933.75 

g) Postage and Courier  21.64  15.64 

h) Electricity Charges  108.86  75.21 

i) Insurance  486.55  339.72 

j) Equipment Lease Rentals  6,500.93  1,479.25 

 3,060.46  3,000.64 

l) Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  5.27  - 

m) Miscellaneous Expenses 384.58  77.39 

 5,271.37  3,901.88 

o) Printing and Stationery  450.09  322.09 

p) Repairs & Maintainance   

 - Machinaries / Equipments 692.49  407.35 

 - Building  0.47  1.24 

 - Others 392.93  493.02 

q) Communication Costs  2,182.59  1,668.21 

 154.89  108.70 

s) Asset Management Fees  110.19  109.89 

t) Donations  0.36  0.99 

u) Vehicle Expenses  9.33  15.86 

 330.13  144.65 

w) Bad debts written off  13.17  - 

x) Provision for Doubtful Debts  408.55  524.66 

y) Membership & Subscription  3.43  12.75 

TOTAL  152,213.70  96,856.84

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the 
year ended
31.03.2012 

For the
year ended       
31.03.2011 

(# Footnote: Auditor’s 
Remuneration) 

As Auditor 

Statutory Audit Fee  33.57  24.51 

Tax Audit Fee  5.02  3.65 

In other Capacity  -  - 

Taxation Matters  0.84  4.35 

 1.89  0.25 

TOTAL  41.31  32.76 

28)  PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS:

` 

of One time Non Cash recognition of provision arising out of 

in Decision One Corporation.

29) OPERATING LEASES:

 

facilities, equipments and residential premises for 
employees, which are renewable on a periodic basis 
and cancelable at its option. Rental expense for 
operating leases included in the income statements 
for the year is ` ` 
and the same are debited to Rental expense and 
Equipment Lease Rentals.

free security deposits have been given by the Company 
(excluding certain Equipment Lease Agreements 
where no such deposits have been given).

  c) These agreements (excluding certain Equipment 
Lease Agreements) provide for;

agreement

  d) Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
leases:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2011-2012 2010-2011

` `

Not later than one year 921.96               921.96

Later than one year but not 3,687.82 3,687.82

2,304.89 3,226.84

  e) No asset has been acquired on Finance Lease.
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 II) Operating Leases – Income

  
premises. All such leases are renewable on a periodic 
basis and cancelable at its option. Rental income for 
operating leases included in the income statements for 

`

  b) No asset has been given on Finance Lease

30) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

 As per Accounting Standard 18 on “Related Party Disclosures”, 

are given below:

 
place and Relationship:

 a) Key Management Personnel (“KMP”)

Director

  iii. Mr. Shantanu Rooj - Director

 b) Relatives of KMP

  

  iv. Mr. N. G. Anil Kumar-Brother of Mrs. Divvyani A. 

  v. Mr. N. Lalith Kumar-Brother of Mrs. Divvyani A. 

  vii. Mrs. Kavita Rooj -Wife of Mr. Shantanu Rooj 

 

  i. Growdyne Techzone Services Limited

  ii. Glodyne Global Private Limited

  iii. Sarvalabh Global Foundation

  iv. Glodyne Power Limited

(` in Lakhs)

Related Parties
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Relatives 
of Key 

Management 
Personnel

Enterprise 

certain KMP 

 Remuneration 203.77 6.03 NIL

(259.66) (7.91) (NIL)

Money Received 
against Convertible 
Warrants

NIL NIL 4,740.00

(NIL) (NIL) (1,080.00)

Loans and Advances 
given during the year 
(net of repayment)

NIL NIL 23.70

(NIL) (NIL) (NIL)

Related Parties
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Relatives 
of Key 

Management 
Personnel

Enterprise 

certain KMP 

Deposits given NIL NIL NIL

(NIL) (NIL) (50)

Amount repaid on 
Current Account during 
the year (Net)

NIL NIL NIL

(14.45) (NIL) (NIL)

Revenue from Product 
& Services

NIL NIL 8.00

(NIL) (NIL) (NIL)

Rent received NIL NIL 0.72

(NIL)  (NIL) (NIL)

Rent paid NIL NIL 460.98

(NIL) (NIL) (460.98)

Dividend paid 1,022.89 41.33 8.40

(600.29) (26.07) (NIL)

Balances

Balance Receivable 

(Net of provisions)

NIL NIL 33.32

NIL (NIL) (NIL)

Balance Payable NIL NIL 223.81

(NIL) (NIL) (67.21)

 Footnote: Transactions in the nature of reimbursement 
of expenses are not considered for the purpose of above 

31) Trade Receivables and Loans and Advances are unsecured but 
considered good except otherwise stated, for which the company 
holds no security other than personal security of respective 
parties.

32) In the opinion of the Board, Current assets, loans and advances 
are realizable at a value, which is at least equal to the amount 
at which these are stated in the ordinary course of business 

adequate and not in excess of the amount stated

33)
Derivative transactions and hence the disclosures regarding the 
same have not been made.

34)

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2011-2012  
(`)

2010-2011  
(`)

Provident Fund 
102.35 93.52

Employees State Insurance 
Fund 

2.31 8.41
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  Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2011-2012  
(`)

2010-2011  
(`)

year 

70.48 20.31

Current Service Cost 19.38 8.07

Interest Cost 7.07 2.26

Actuarial (gain) / loss 7.28 39.96

(8.28) (0.14)

the year end
95.93 70.48

 (c) 
head “Staff Cost” - Refer Note No. 25):

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2011-2012 
(`)

2010-2011 
(`)

Current Service Cost 19.38 8.07

Interest Cost 7.07 2.26

Actuarial (gain) / loss 7.28 39.96

Expense recognised in the 33.73 50.30

 (d) Actuarial Assumptions:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars in respect of 
Gratuity (non-funded)

2011-2012 2010-2011

Discount Rate (per annum) 8.50% 8.25%

Expected Rate of Return on 
Plan assets (per annum)

8.50% 8.25%

Salary Escalation (per 
annum)

5.00% 5.00%

35) SEGMENT INFORMATION:

 As per Accounting Standard 17 on “Segment Reporting”, the 
Company has reported segment information on consolidated 
basis including business conducted through its subsidiaries.  

 Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses directly attributable to 
segments are reported under each reportable segment. Items 
which are not attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed 
as un-allocable assets, liabilities, revenue or expenses, as the 
case may be. 

organization structure and internal reporting system, Company 
has structured its operations into the two categories of 
Geographical Segments i.e. India and Rest of the World. The 
Company does not have the secondary Business Segment.  The 

(` in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Reportable 
Geographical 

Segments

Total

India Rest of 
the World

1. Segment Revenue
From External 
Customers

171,290.34 93,140.13 264,430.46

From another 
Segment

826.00 - 826.00

Total Revenue 172,116.34 93,140.13 265,256.46

2. Segments Results 41350.27 (3,824.13) 37,526.14

3. - - 4,170.80

4.
Expenses

- - -

5. - - 41,696.94

6. Finance Charges - - 7,442.63

7.
Period Items

- - 34,254.31

8. Prior period Items - - 1,092.14

9.
Tax

- - 33,162.18

10. Provision for Tax - - 13,053.51

11.
but before Minority 
Interest

- - 20,108.66

12. Minority Interest - - 289.95

13.
Tax and Minority 
Interest

- - 19.818.71

 Other Information

S r . 
No.

Particulars Reportable 
Geographical Segments

Total

India Rest of the 
World

14. Segment Assets 104,993.64 111,344.06 216,337.70

15. - - -

16. Total Assets - - 216,337.70

17. Segment Liabilities 23,554.51 97,204.87 120,759.37

18.
Liabilities 

- - 95,578.33

19. Total Liabilities - - 216,337.70

20. Capital Expenditure 
incurred during the 
year

22,736.84 1,030.90 23,767.74

21. Depreciation 5,725.17 2,809.11 8,534.27

36) EARNING PER SHARE (EPS):

Particulars  2011-2012 2010-2011

Loss (A)

` In 19,818.71   17,411.55     

Add: Amortisation of 
employee compensation 
cost (as per intrinsic Value 
Method) recognised in 
the accounts

` In 21.19 -
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Particulars  2011-2012 2010-2011

Less: Amortisation of 
employee compensation 
cost (as per Fair Value 
Method) not recognised 
in the accounts

` In (841.41) (416.45)

(as adjusted) Attributable 
to Equity share holders 
(B)

` In 18,998.49   16,995.10

Weighted Average 
No. of Equity Shares 
Outstanding during the 
year (Before adjusting the 
dilutive potential equity 
shares but including 
Shares to be issued 
under the Scheme) (C)

Nos. 4,41,97,530 43,185,857

outstanding as on the 
balance sheet date.

Nos. 22,79,293 2,259,355

Total Number of Dilutive 
potential equity shares 
outstanding during the 
year (D)

Nos. 26,54,434 3,042,277

Total Weighted Average 
Number of  equity shares 
for calculation of Diluted 
EPS (E = C + D)

Nos. 4,68,51,964 46,228,134

Nominal Value of Equity 
Shares

` 6.00 6.00

Basic EPS As Reported ` 44.84 40.32

Basic EPS As Adjusted ` 42.99 39.35           

Diluted EPS As Reported ` 42.30 37.66      

Diluted EPS As Adjusted ` 40.55 36.76

37) EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS:

  (a)

employees of its subsidiary companies. In accordance with 

Purchase Scheme Guidelines, 1999 issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), the Company has 
elected to use the “Intrinsic Value method” to account for 

the year ended 31st March 2012, the Company has been 
advised that there is an accounting impact of `

Company adopted “Fair Value Method” for calculating the 
Compensation cost, the total accounting impact for the year 
would have been ` `
after tax lower by ̀ `
and diluted earnings per share would have been lower by  
` 1.86 (` 0.96) and ` 1.75 (`0.90) respectively. 

 (b) Summary of Stock Options:

  Scheme Name: ESOP 2006
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2011-12 2010-11

Number 
of 

options

Weighted 
Average 

Price (`)

Number 
of  

options

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price (`)

Outstanding at the 
beginning of the year*

1,078,375 105.03 1,292,912 83.18

Granted during the year* 0 0.00 60,000 348.87

Cancelled during the year* 108,398 35.17 141,223 65.46

Exercised during the year* 167,930 64.48 133,313 35.45

Expired during the year* 0 0 0 0

Outstanding at the end of 
the year*

802,047 122.97 1,078,375 105.03

Exercisable at the end of 
the year*

382,807 139.40 412,946 110.18

Weighted Average 
Remaining contractual life 
(in years)

3.33 4.08

Weighted average fair 
value of options granted  
during the year* (`)

0.00 227.59

  *The options have been adjusted for split – Face value of ` 
10 split to face value of ` 6  as on Feb 10,2011 and a bonus 
of 1:1 share as on August 20,2009

  Scheme Name: ESOP 2010
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2011-12 2010-11
Number 

of 
options

Weighted 
Average 

Price (`)

Number 
of options

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price (`)

Outstanding at the 
beginning of the 
year*

1,180,980 341.94 0 0.00

Granted during the 
year*

680,220 179.36 1,180,980 341.94

Cancelled during 
the year*

382,601 341.94 0 0.00

Exercised during 
the year*

0 0.00 0 0.00

Expired during the 
year*

1,353 341.94 0 0.00

Outstanding at the 
end of the year*

1,477,246 267.08 1,180,980 341.94

Exercisable at the 
end of the year*

45,108 341.94 0 0.00

Weighted Average 
R e m a i n i n g 
contractual life (in 
years)

5.17 5.79

Weighted average 
fair value of options 
granted  during the 
year* (`)

169.51 280.38

  *The options have been adjusted for split – Face value of  
` 10 split to face value of ` 6  as on Feb 10,2011 and a 
bonus of 1:1 share as on August 20,2009

 (c) Average share price on the date of exercise of the option 
Information in respect of Options outstanding as at 31st 
March 2012:
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Average Share Price on 

7-Mar-11 379.75
15-Mar-11 362.43
11-Jul-11 323.30
13-Jul-11 321.45
19-Jul-11 305.03
21-Jul-11 310.40
21-Sep-11 354.80
30-Sep-11 374.73
4-Oct-11 366.93

 (d)  Information in respect of Options outstanding as at 31st 
March 2012:

Price
Number 

of Options 
Outstanding

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life (in years)

Weighted 
Average 

Price (`)

ESOP 2006    
` 20-160 755,380 3.50 109.01
` 161-350 46,667 0.62 348.87
ESOP 2010
` 6 – 150 250,000 5.93 6.00
 1,227,246 5.01 320.26

  
outstanding at the end of the current year ended 
31st March 2011

Range of Number 
of Options 

Outstanding

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life (in years)

Weighted 
Average 

Price (`)

ESOP 2006
Rs 20-160 1,031,708 4.19 94.00
` 161-350 46,667 1.62 348.87
ESOP 2010
` 340 – 350 1,180,980 5.79 341.94

 (e) The fair value of option granted on 20th November 2006, 6th 
March 2007, 28th March 2007, 27th September 2007, 29th 
January 2008, 30th October 2008, 1st July 2009 and 28th July 
2009, 9th June 2010 ,13th January 2011, 30th August 2011 
and March 06, 2012 are ` 12.26, 11.42, Rs 12.84, ` 33.92, 
` 55.87, ` 45.50, ` 72.39, ` 85.65, 133.90 & 149.80,168.23, 
134.06 and 230.50 per share respectively.

made in this regard are as follows:

Variables 30-Aug-11 06-Mar-12
8.30% 8.29%

2.  Expected Life 3.50 3.50

Variables 30-Aug-11 06-Mar-12

3.  Expected Volatility 61.14% 58.03%

4.  Dividend Yield 1.03% 1.03%

5.  Price of the underlying 

time of the option grant.
(`)

280.1 243.6

  Note : The information given above is based on the post sub 
division options position and adjusted to the split.

38) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS NOT 
PROVIDED FOR:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.12

As at 
31.03.11

1,730.62 322.10

guarantee.

2,089.45 520.97

c.  Capital Commitments in respect 

advances paid)

330.00 240.00

d)  Guarantees  given by the company 
in respect of the loans 

49,625.20 48,416.80

e)  Claims Against the company not 84.54 84.54

f) Payment obligation under share 
purchase agreement (SPA) in 
respect of acquistion of Comat 
Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

832.98 -

TOTAL 54,692.79 49,584.41

39) Notes of these Consolidated Financial Statements are intended to 
serve as a means of informative disclosure and a guide to better 
understanding of the consolidated position of the companies. 
Recognising this purpose, the company has disclosed only such 
Notes from the individual Financial Statements, which fairly 
present the needed disclosure. Practical considerations made 
it desirable to exclude Notes to Financial Statements, which in 
the opinion of the management could be better viewed, when 

40) Till previous period ending on 31st March 2011, the company was 
using pre-revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 for 

the year ending 31st March 2012, the revised Schedule VI as 

As per our report of even date
For N M Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2012

(Except as to Note 4(e) referred to in para 4 of 
our report, which is as of 6th December 2012)

For and behalf of the Board

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & 

Managing Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Director

R. S. P. Sinha
Director

Bryan Sanderson
Director

Dr. Mohan Kaul
Director

Samar Ray
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May 2012

(Except as to Note 4(e) and consequent amendments, which is as of 6th December 2012)
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Statement relating to Subsidiary Companies as on March 31, 2012
(`

Particulars Smaarftech 
Technologies 

Private 
Limited

Glodyne 

Limited

Glodyne 
Technoserve 

Inc.

Compulink 
USA Inc.

Compulink 
Europe Ltd

Compulink 

Limited

Issued & Subscribed Share Capital 460.00 420.00 16,735.90 247.48 171.05 465.63

Nil Nil 2,750.56 Nil Nil Nil

Reserves 997.24 1,095.56 (5,517.75) (322.69) (210.04) (484.32)

Total Assets 7,799.86 5,696.97 111,333.43 7.14 0.65 2.84

Total Liabilities 6,342.62 4,181.41 97,364.72 82.35 39.64 21.53

Turnover 13,724.61 5,657.24 93,085.33 54.80 - -

1,236.68 1,307.12 (8,227.02) (7.91) (6.82) (6.43)

Provision for Taxation 342.91 583.42 62.23 - - -

893.77 723.70 (8,289.25) (7.91) (6.82) (6.43)

Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

STATEMENT REGARDING SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956:

Particulars Smaarftech 
Technologies 

Pvt. Limited

Glodyne 

Limited

Glodyne 
Technoserve 

Inc.

Compulink 
USA Inc.

Compulink 
Europe Ltd

Comulink 

Pte Limited

March 31, 2012:

1) No. of Shares 4,600,000 2,520,000 31,273,870 5,51,482 2,11,470 1,495,500

2) Face Value ` 10/- ` 10/- GBP 1 SGD 1

3) Extent of Holding 100% 60% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Company so far as it concerns the members 

31.3.2012: (`

Holding Company
893.77 434.22 (8,289.25) (7.91) (6.82) (6.43)

Holding Company
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Company so far as it concerns the members of 

since it became the subsidiary: (`

Holding Company
997.25 679.61 (3,955.50) (0.42) (11.93) (65.11)

Holding Company
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifteenth Annual General 
Meeting of the Members of GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE 
LIMITED will be held on Saturday, December 29, 2012 at 9 
A.M., at MIG Club, Gandhinagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 
051, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet 

year ended on that date, together with the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

Ordinary 
Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT Mr. Alok Sharma, a Director of 
the Company, who is liable to retire by rotation at this 
meeting and who does not seek re-appointment, be not 
re-appointed as a Director of the Company. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the vacancy so created on 
the Board by not re-appointing Mr. Alok Sharma on the 

Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT
Accountants, (Registration No. 107072W), be and are 
hereby re-appointed as Auditors of the Company, to hold 

by the Board of Directors (which term shall include any 

 SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Special 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Sections 
198, 269, 309, 311, Schedule XIII and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, and as 
approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Board 
of Directors at their respective meetings held on May 24, 
2012 and May 25, 2012, consent of the members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded for reappointment 

September 25, 2012 to September 24, 2017, and his terms 
of re-appointment including the terms of remuneration 
for a period of three years from September 25, 2012 to 
September 24, 2015 as contained in the draft Agreement 
to be entered into between the Company and Mr. Annand 

is placed before the meeting and initialed by the Chairman 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’ which 
term shall include any Committee of the Board including 
Remuneration Committee) be and is hereby authorized to 

any increase or enhancement, within the present pay 
scale, subject to the applicable statutory provisions and 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or 

paid as minimum remuneration, subject to such statutory 

from time to time; and necessary approval of the Central 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be 
and is hereby authorized to obtain necessary regulatory 
approvals, to modify the aforesaid terms and conditions 

(including his terms of remuneration), of its own, subject 

Central Government or other appropriate authority while 
granting its approval, and to do all such other acts, deeds, 
matters and things as it may in absolute discretion deem 

including to delegate powers of the Board granted by this 
resolution to any committee of Directors, or any Director or 
Secretary of the Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

may arise in respect of the aforesaid, do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things as it may, at its absolute 

and writings as may be necessary to give effect to this 

Special 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Sections 
198, 269, 309, 311, Schedule XIII and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, and 
as approved by the Remuneration Committee and the 
Board of Directors at their respective meetings held 
on May 24, 2012 and May 25, 2012, consent of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
for reappointment of Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik, as the 

Notice
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years from September 25, 2012 to September 24, 2017, 
and her terms of re appointment including the terms of 
remuneration for a period of three years from September 
25, 2012 to September 24, 2015 as contained in the draft 
Agreement to be entered into between the Company and 

which is placed before the meeting and initialed by the 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’ which 
term shall include any Committee of the Board including 
Remuneration Committee) be and is hereby authorized to 

or enhancement, within the present pay scale, subject to 
the applicable statutory provisions and approval of the 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or 

to be paid to her as above shall be paid as minimum 
remuneration, subject to such statutory ceiling as may be 

and necessary approval of the Central Government will be 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be 
and is hereby authorized to obtain necessary regulatory 
approvals, to modify the aforesaid terms and conditions 

terms of remuneration) of its own, subject to necessary 

Government or other appropriate authority while granting 
its approval, and to do all such other acts, deeds, matters 

purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, including 
to delegate powers of the Board granted by this resolution 
to any committee of Directors, or any Director or Secretary 
of the Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

may arise in respect of the aforesaid, do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things as it may, at its absolute 

and writings as may be necessary to give effect to this 

Special 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 81(1A) and all other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 1956, and pursuant to the provisions 

Guidelines, 2009 as in force(QIP Guidelines), and subject 

re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and 

Circulars, Schemes, Guidelines and Directions, if any, 

where the securities of the Company are listed (including 
provisions of the listing agreement with them), and other 
concerned and relevant authorities and other applicable 
laws if any, and the relevant provisions of the Memorandum 
and Articles of Association of the Company; and also 
subject to such approvals, consents, permissions, or 
sanctions of the Government of India (GOI), RBI, SEBI and 
any other appropriate Authorities, institutions or Bodies as 
may be necessary and subject to such terms, conditions, 

variations as may be prescribed by any of them in granting 
any such approvals, consents, permissions, or sanctions; 
and which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors 

be deemed to include any Committee of Directors for 
the time being authorised by the Board of Directors to 

resolution), consent of the members of the Company 
be and is hereby accorded to the Board to create, offer, 
issue and allot on behalf of the Company, from time to 
time, in one or more tranches (including with provision for 

a placement document and / or such other documents / 

Shares and / or other permitted Securities convertible 

Shares and / or Securities (hereinafter referred to as the 

Institutional Buyers (QIBs) under SEBI QIP Guidelines, 
in such manner and on such price, terms and conditions 
as may be determined by the Board in accordance with 
the provisions of / under SEBI QIP Guidelines; Provided 

Securities to be so issued shall not be less than the price 
arrived at in accordance with the SEBI QIP Guidelines.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aggregate of the 
amount to be raised pursuant to the authority granted 

the case may be (inclusive of such premium as may be 
determined).

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the relevant date for the 
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as per provisions of Clause 81(c) and other applicable 
provisions of the SEBI QIP Guidelines as amended from 
time to time.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT 
Securities to be issued and allotted pursuant to this 
resolution shall rank pari passu in all respects with the 

in accordance with applicable provisions of SEBI QIP 
Guidelines.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of 
giving effect to this resolution or to any offer, issue or 

or securities representing the same, the Board be and 
is hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its 
absolute discretion deem necessary or desirable for such 
purpose, including but without limitation, determining 
the type, form and manner of the issue / securities, the 
class of eligible investors to whom the securities are to 
be offered, issued and allotted in each tranche, issue 
price, face value, premium amount on issue / conversion 
of securities / redemption of securities, rate of interest, 

Managers, Merchant Bankers, Guarantors, Financial 

Custodians, Registrars, Trustees, Bankers, and all other 
agencies, agents or intermediaries, whether in India or 
abroad, and to remunerate them by way of commission, 

of all such agreements / arrangements / Memorandum 

agencies, and listing of the shares / securities (including 

of the issue, without further reference or approval of the 
shareholders.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 

doubts or problems that may arise in regard to the offer, 
issue, or allotment of the aforesaid shares / securities and 
utilisation of the issue proceeds as it may in its absolute 

further consent or approval of the members or otherwise, 
with the intent that the members shall be deemed to have 

this resolution.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT to give effect to the 
aforesaid resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorised 
to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to 
any committee of Directors or Managing Directors or any 

any intermediary or agent or consultant or advisor of the 
Company, or to such other person(s) as the Board may 

Special 
Resolution

 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 81 (1A) and all other applicable provisions, if any, of 

enactment thereof for the time being in force), Issue of 
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and Ordinary Shares 
(through Depository Receipt Mechanism) Scheme, 1993, 

a Person Resident Outside India) Regulations, 2000 

Guidelines and directions, if any, of the Securities and 

of the Company are listed (including provisions of the 
listing agreement with them), and other concerned and 
relevant authorities and other applicable laws if any, and 
the relevant provisions of the Memorandum and Articles 
of Association of the Company; and also subject to such 
approvals, consents, permissions, or sanctions of the 
Government of India (GOI), RBI, SEBI and any other 
Indian / Overseas appropriate authorities, institutions 
or bodies as may be necessary and subject to such 
terms, conditions, stipulations, alterations, amendments, 

any of them in granting any such approvals, consents, 
permissions, or sanctions; and which may be agreed 
to by the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as 

Committee of Directors for the time being authorised by 

on the Board by this resolution), consent of the members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board 
to create, offer, issue and allot on behalf of the Company, 
in one or more tranches (including with provision for 

or private offerings in domestic and / or international 
markets, through prospectus and / or offer letter, and/or 
offering memorandum and / or placement document, and 

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) and  / or 
Global Depository Receipts (GDRs), and / or American 
Depository Receipts (ADRs),other Depository Receipts 

Shares or convertible Securities through Depository 

Shares, and / or any other Securities convertible into 

Shares and / or Securities (hereinafter referred to as the 
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on the assets of the Company or unsecured, subscribed 
to in Indian / Foreign Currency(ies), by Indian or Foreign 
Banks, Institutions, Institutional Investors, Mutual Funds, 
Companies, Other Corporate Bodies, Trusts, Funds, 

Nationals, individuals and other eligible Investors, 
persons or entities (hereinafter collectively referred to as 

or not such investors are members of the Company; 

currency as the case may be (inclusive of such premium 
as may be determined).

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such offer, issue and 
allotment be made, at such time or times, in Indian Rupees 

prices (subject to applicable price restrictions, prescribed 
if any in this regard), in such form and manner and on 
such other terms and conditions as may be decided and 
deemed appropriate by the Board at the time of such offer, 
issue and allotment, subject however, to the applicable 

applicable statutory provisions.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of offer / issue 
/ allotment of shares / securities in Indian and / or 
international market under the respective guidelines of 
SEBI, RBI, or other appropriate authorities, as the case 
may be, the price (inclusive of premium) of the shares 
and   / or securities shall not be less than the price arrived 
in accordance with the provisions of respective applicable 
guidelines, rules, regulations or directions; and in any other 
case, the price (inclusive of premium) of the shares and / 
or securities shall not be less than that prescribed under 
applicable guidelines, rules, regulations or directions, if 
any, of the appropriate Authorities.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the relevant date for the 
issuance of the shares and / or securities under relevant 
guidelines of SEBI or RBI for FCCBs, GDRs, or other 
Depository Receipts shall be decided by the Board of 

accordance with the applicable guidelines.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company through its 
Board or any of its Committee and / or any agency or 
body authorised by the Company, may issue receipts /

underlying securities issued / to be issued by the Company 
with such features and attributes as are prevalent in 
Indian   / International capital markets, for instruments of 
this nature and provide for the free / restricted tradability or 
transferability thereof as per laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines under the forms and practices prevalent in the 
Indian / International market.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorised to create, offer, issue and allot, from 

at such price that may be decided by the Board in its 
absolute discretion, as may be necessary in accordance 
with the terms of the offering of any of the aforesaid 

securities, all such shares / securities ranking pari- passu 

securities, as the case may be, of the Company, but shall 

transferability restrictions, as are / may be prescribed 
by appropriate authorities under applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines and directions if any.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to any offer, issue or allotment of securities or 

same, the Board be and is hereby authorised on behalf 
of the Company be and is hereby authorised on behalf 
of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary 
or desirable for such purpose, including but without 
limitation, determining the type, form and manner of the 
issue / securities, the class of eligible investors to whom 
the securities are to be offered, issued and allotted in 
each tranche, issue price, face value, premium / discount 
amount on issue / conversion of securities / redemption 
of securities, rate of interest, conversion or redemption 
period, appointment of Managers, Merchant Bankers, 

Depositories, Custodians, Registrars, Trustees, Bankers, 
and all other agencies or intermediaries, whether in India 
or abroad, and to remunerate them by way of commission, 

all such agreements / arrangements / Memorandum 

agencies, and listing of the shares / securities (including 

issue of the said securities) on any Indian and / or Foreign 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

problems that may arise in regard to the offer, issue, or 
allotment of the aforesaid shares / securities and utilisation 

size or the terms of the issue, as it may in its absolute 

further consent or approval of the members or otherwise, 
with the intent that the members shall be deemed to have 

this resolution.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT to give effect to the 
aforesaid resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorised 
to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to 
any committee of Directors or Managing Directors or any 
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to any intermediary or agent of the Company, or to such 

at its absolute discretion.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Glodyne Technoserve Limited 

Sd/-
Annand Sarnaaik

Date: December 6, 2012

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051. 

 
NOTES:

be effective, must be lodged at the Company’s registered 

attendance at the meeting. 

173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of item of 
item no. 3 under ordinary business and item nos. 5 to 8 

hereto and forms part of this notice.

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of 
the Company will remain closed on Saturday, December 
29, 2012, to decide the entitlement of shareholders for 
payment of dividend that may be declared at the Annual 
General Meeting. In respect of shares held in physical 
form as well as in demat form, dividend will be paid to 
those shareholders / deemed members, whose names 
shall appear on the Register of Members or on statement 

December 28, 2012. 

statements are open for inspection of the members 

days between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m., up to the date of 
the Annual General Meeting and during the time of the 
meeting. 

6. Those members who have not encashed / claimed the 

2007, 2007-08, 2008-09, 2009-10 and 2010-11 are 

Agent of the Company or the Company Secretary at the 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, 
any unclaimed / unpaid dividend shall be transferred to the 

date. Once the dividend is transferred to the above fund, 
no claim shall lie against the Company or the said Fund in 
respect of such unclaimed / unpaid dividend. 

7. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs as a part of 
“Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” has 
issued circulars allowing Companies for paperless 
compliances by stating that service of notice / 
documents including Annual Report can be sent by 
e-mail to its members. Being an IT Company and 
also your Company supports the concept of green 
initiatives, Glodyne proposes to send the shareholders 
communications such as Notice of General Meetings, 
Audited Financial Results, Auditors’ Report, Directors’ 
Report etc. in electronic mode to the email Id of the 
Investors which are registered with the Depositories. 
To support this green initiative of the Government in 
full measure, members who have not registered their 
e-mail addresses, so far, are requested to register 
their e-mail addresses, in respect of electronic 
holdings with the Depository through their concerned 
Depository Participants. Members who hold shares 
in physical form are requested to register their e-mail 
address with Bigshare Services Pvt. Limited, Registrar 
and Transfer Agents of the Company.

 Members who prefer physical copy to be delivered 

email to cs@glodyne.com by providing the reference 
of the DP Id and Client Id.

REQUEST TO THE MEMBERS:

1. Members desiring any information at the Annual General 

(Seven) days in advance, so as to enable the Company to 
keep the information ready. 

the Annual Report will not be distributed at the Annual 
General Meeting. 

in their address to the Company either at its Registered 

case their shares are held in De-materialized form, the 
information should be passed on to their respective 
Depositary Participants without any delay. 

details to the Depositary Participants to enable the 
Company to print the same on the dividend warrants  / to 
avail of ECS facility, wherever applicable.
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Item No. 3:

Mr. Alok Sharma has  been  a Director  of  the  Company,  
liable  to  retire  by  rotation.  As  per  the  provisions  of  Section  
256  and  other  applicable  provisions  of  the  Companies  Act,  
1956  and  the  Articles  of  Association  of  the  Company,  
Mr.  Alok Sharma, will  be  retiring  by  rotation  as  a  Director  of  
the  Company  at  the  forthcoming  Annual  General  Meeting  
of  the  Company.

interests, Mr. Alok Sharma has  not  opted  for  getting   

the view that the vacancy created on the Board of the Company 

Company puts on record its appreciation for the contribution of 
Mr. Alok Sharma to the Company. Accordingly, the proposed 
Ordinary Resolution under item no. 3  is  recommended  by  the  
Board  for  approval  of  the  shareholders.

Sharma is  any  way  concerned  or  interested  in  the  proposed  
resolution.

Item No. 5 & 6

Shareholders of the Company vide their special resolutions 
passed at the Annual General meeting held on September 
24, 2007, had approved appointment of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik, 

period of three years from September 25, 2007 to September 
24, 2010.

The terms of remuneration of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik and 

years from September 25, 2007 to September 24, 2010 

September 24, 2012. 

of Directors and the Board of Directors at their respective 
meetings held on May 24, 2012 and May 25, 2012, had 
approved the terms of appointment from September 25, 2012 
to September 24, 2017 and remuneration from September 
25, 2012 to September 24, 2015 for Mr. Annand Sarnaaik, as 

Since the tenure and the terms of remuneration are coming to 
end on September 24, 2012, the Remuneration Committee and 
the Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 24, 2012 
and May 25, 2012 respectively have approved re appointment  

EXPLANATORY  STATEMENT  PURSUANT  TO  SECTION  173(2)  OF  THE  COMPANIES  
ACT,  1956,  ANNEXED  TO  AND  FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS:

for Mr. Annand Sarnaaik for a period of three years. 

Remuneration:

a) Annual Salary:

 Chairman and Managing Director: 

Remuneration 
Scale: 

` 5,00,000/- to ` 10,00,000/- per 
month.

Salary - ` 87,00,000/-  

Only) per annum, effective from 
September 25, 2012.

Executive 
Director: 
Remuneration 
Scale: 

` 5,00,000/- to ` 10,00,000/- per 
month.

Salary - ` 69,00,000/- 

from September 25, 2012.

The Board of Directors/Remuneration Committee will 
determine the amount of salary payable to the Chairman 

the amount of increments payable, depending on their 

and other relevant factors, subject however, to the 
condition that the overall remuneration along with the 

limit, the Company shall obtain necessary approvals, 

of the Company prescribed in this regard.

salary drawn in the last year of service for each 
completed year of service. Such gratuity shall be 
payable according to the rules of the Company. If 

Director are re-appointed, gratuity will be paid at the 
end of their tenure with the Company.
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 iii) The following shall not be included in the computation 

 Provision of free telephone (land line/Cell phones or other 

other communicating facilities or reimbursement of such 

usage, if any, shall be charged on actual basis.

 The remuneration of all the Managerial personnel shall also 
be subject to the overall ceiling limits prescribed under the 
Companies Act for managerial remuneration. Any such 

the Central government or any other appropriate authority.

c) Commission: Such amount to be paid by way of 

amount of remuneration permissible to the Chairman 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (at 

year for each managerial person) and the sum of monthly 

calculated as per the provisions of the said Act.

d) Minimum Remuneration:

proposed to pay them such remuneration as the minimum 
remuneration, which is permissible under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956 and other applicable statutory 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 Mr. Annand Sarnaaik, aged about 44 years, is Bachelor 

the strategic initiatives, policy decisions and business 

Company from a modest beginning to make it a leading IT 

the Company.

 Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik, aged about 41 years, is 
a Commerce Graduate and MBA has over 18 years’ 

in building the Company’s present position. She has been 
steering the operations of the Company and has been 
instrumental is driving the service initiatives at Glodyne. 

 Considering these factors, the Board/Remuneration 
Committee is of the opinion that their remuneration as 

above as well as detailed in the draft agreement referred 
to in their respective resolutions, as their continuing with 

therefore recommends the special resolution as proposed 
under these head of items for your approval.

interested in the proposed special resolution to the 

them. Also, as both of them are related to each other, 
they are also deemed to be interested in the proposed 

will receive the remuneration. Besides above, none of the 
other Directors of the Company are any way concerned or 
interested in the proposed resolutions.

 The particulars given above as well as in the resolutions 
under respective items may be considered to constitute the 
abstract of the terms of the agreement and memorandum 

under the provisions of Section 302 of the Companies Act, 
1956.

 Item No 7 and 8 

grown thru organic and inorganic measures. It has been 
a policy of your Company to grow with pace by identifying 
right opportunities, and your Company is trying its best 

growth, in pace with the opportunities. 

 The Company also intends to pare off certain portion 
of the debt and also raise funds at appropriate time to 

of investment in business plans, directly or through 

and general business purposes, various measures are 

Company is proposing to raise resources as per permission 
of the members sought under special resolutions at item 

facilitating implementation of the plans with speed and 
economy.

 In view of the above, the Board of Directors of the 
Company has proposed to tap diverse sources to raise 
the funds needed, by either any one, or by combination of 

set out in resolutions at Item No.7 and 8 of this notice. 
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The Company is planning to raise the said funds through 
combination of one or more of the following, in one or 
more tranches:

 a. By way of placement shares and / or other permitted 

guidelines for the same prescribed under Chapter VIII 

as in force(QIP Guidelines); as has been referred to in 
special resolution at item no. 7 and/or b. In Domestic/
International markets by way of Public/Private issue/
offering of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs), 
or Global Depository Receipts (GDRs), or any other kind 
of securities/instrument(s) as has been referred to in 
special resolution at item no. 8;

 The said resolution is seeking approval of the members 
of the Company for proposed issue(s) of securities and is 
proposing to confer authority on the Board to do all acts 

and allot securities of appropriate nature at opportune 
time, including the size, structure, price, timing and other 
terms and conditions of the offer/issue.

 The detailed terms and conditions for such domestic/
international offerings will be determined in consultation 
with the merchant bankers, lead managers, consultants, 
advisors, underwriters and/or such other intermediaries 
that may be appointed for the issue/offer. Wherever 
necessary and applicable, the pricing and other terms and 

with applicable guidelines, directions, rules and regulations 
in force of the Government of India, the Reserve Bank of 
India, SEBI and other appropriate authorities; subject to 
the minimum price of the shares/securities to be issued 
and allotted being kept in accordance with such applicable 

trading restrictions on such shares/securities will be 
determined accordingly.

 Section 81(1) of the Companies Act, 1956 inter-alia 
provides that whenever it is proposed to increase the 
subscribed capital of the Company by issue of further 

shareholders of the Company in the manner laid down in the 
said Section; unless the shareholders decide otherwise by 
a special resolution. Accordingly, consent of the members 
of the Company is being sought pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 81(1A) and all other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 1956 and in terms of the provisions 

regulations, guidelines, and directions, authorising the 
Board to create, offer, issue and allot securities as stated 
in the said resolution, which would result in issuance of 
further securities of the Company to persons other than 

nature of the securities.

your approval, as they feel the same to be in the interest 
of the Company.

 None of the Directors of the Company is in any way 
concerned or interested in the proposed resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Glodyne Technoserve Limited 

Sd/-
Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & Managing Director

Date: December 6, 2012

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051. 
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  D.P. I.D 

15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I hereby record my presence at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Saturday, December 29, 2012 at 
9 A.M., at MIG Club, Gandhinagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

*Member’s / Proxy’s Name in Block Letters *Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

Note:

*Strike out whichever is not applicable.

GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE LIMITED

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051.

PROXY FORM

Regd. Folio No  Client I.D 

  D.P. I.D 

I/We  of 

of   or failing him/her  of

the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Saturday, December 29, 2012 at 9 A.M., at MIG Club, 
Gandhinagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this……………………………day of ………………………………………2012.

Note:- 

GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE LIMITED

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051.

Tear here

Signature

a Re. 1/-
Revenue
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